
UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

1. Call to order 
2. Roll call 
3. Pledge of allegiance 
4. Recognition of visitors 
5. Adoption of agenda 
6. Awards / Presentations 
7. Minutes of previous meeting: February 13, 2018 
8. Reports 

a. City Manager 
b. Financials:  January 2018 
c. Planning Commission Minutes:  December 21, 2017 and January 18, 2018 
d. Annual Reports 

i. Planning Commission and Historic Preservation Commission 
ii. Parks, Culture & Recreation Committee 
iii. Library Advisory Committee 

9. Community Input / Announcements 
10. Public testimony on agenda items 
11. Legislative 
12. Public hearings 
13. Work session:   

a. Presentation regarding the Library Renovation Project 
14. Consent agenda  

a. Resolution 2018-20: A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council appointing Judges and Clerks 
for the Special Election on March 6, 2018, and Judges to serve on the Canvass Committee 

b. Proclamation of the Unalaska City Council regarding 2018 Winter Olympics in PyeongChang, 
Republic of Korea 

15. Regular agenda 
a. Unfinished Business 

i. Resolution 2018-14:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing the City  
Manager to dispose of personal property, specifically a 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine, 
to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency thereof 

b. New Business 
i. Ordinance 2018-03: Budget Amendment #4, 1st reading 
ii. Request to amend letter to Alaska Delegation regarding Jones Act Waiver, sponsored by 

Council Member Robinson 
16. Executive Session 

a. Discuss Contract Dispute regarding construction of Wastewater Treatment Plant 
17. Council Directives to City Manager 
18. Community Input / Announcements 
19. Adjournment 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, February 27, 2018 
6:00 p.m. 

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 

Packet Page 1



1 
 

UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

 
MINUTES 

 
 
 

1. Call to order 
The regular meeting of the Unalaska City Council came to order at 6:00 pm, February 13, 2018, in the Unalaska 
City Hall Council chambers.  
 

2. Roll call 
Present 
Frank Kelty, Mayor (Telephonic) 
Dennis Robinson, Vice Mayor 
Roger Rowland 
James Fitch      
Alejandro Tungul 
Shari Coleman 
 
Absent 
David Gregory (Excused) 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance – Vice Mayor Robinson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
4. Recognition of visitors – Dennis Moran, Fishermen’s Finest, Inc. 
5. Adoption of agenda – Council adopted the agenda without objection. 
6. Awards / Presentations:  Clint Huling – 30 Years of Service to the City of Unalaska. 
7. Minutes of previous meetings:  January 23; February 3; and February 4, 2018. 

Rowland made a motion to adopt the meeting minutes from January 23, February 3, and February 4, 
2018; Fitch seconded.  Motion passed by consensus. 

8. Reports:  City Manager. 
9. Community Input / Announcements.  The following audience members provided comments: 

• IFHS 
o Monthly Report 
o Dental Sealants for ages 6-9 

• PCR 
o Father Daughter Valentines Dance 
o Polar Bear Run 

• Clerk’s Department 
o Special Election March 6, 2018 
o 2018 Business Personal Property Tax Assessment Reports 

• Post Office – Job Opening 
• Mayor Laurie Gere, City of Anacortes 
• Richard Nelson, Dakota Creek Industries, owner 
• Kristian Uri, Fishermen’s Finest Inc., General Manager 
• Mark Horne, Sundance Stevedoring  
• Dennis Moran, Fishermen’s Finest, Inc., President 
• Layton Wolf, Captain – Coastal Transportation 
• Don Goodfellow, Alyeska Seafoods, Plant Manager 
• Chris Reilly, Trident Seafoods 

 
10. Public testimony on agenda items 
11. Legislative 
12. Public hearings 

 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, February 13, 2018 
6:00 p.m. 

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 

Packet Page 2



2 
 

13. Work session 
Tungul made a motion to enter into Work Session; Rowland seconded.  Motion passed by consensus. 
 

a. Discussion: Funding disposal cost of fishing and processing vessel Akutan 
b. Presentation:   Draft CMMP (Capital and Major Maintenance Plan) 

 
14. Consent agenda  

Coleman made a request to remove Resolution 2018-14 from Consent Agenda and place it under New 
Business.  Vice Mayor moved Resolution 2018-14 to New Business. 
Tungul made a motion to adopt Consent Agenda as amended; Rowland seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 
 

a. Review seven liquor license renewal applications 
b. Resolution 2018-11:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council establishing taxicab rates for 

calendar year 2018 
c. Resolution 2018-12:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council approving the Council’s goals 

for the FYI9 budget 
d. Resolution 2018-19:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council supporting passage of Senate 

Bill 92 
 

15. Regular agenda 
a. Unfinished Business 
b. New Business 

i. Resolution 2018-15:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council confirming the Mayor’s 
appointments to the Library Advisory Committee; the Parks, Culture and Recreation 
Committee; the Planning Commission and Platting Board; and the Historic Preservation 
Commission 
  
Rowland made a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-15; Fitch seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  
Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes; Fitch – yes; Coleman – yes; Rowland – yes.  Motion 
passed 5-0. 
 

ii. Resolution 2018-18:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing the 
reimbursement of $36,000 to the State of Alaska for the costs associated with the 
scuttling of the fishing and processing vessel Akutan 
 
Tungul made a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-18; Coleman seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  
Tungul – yes; Fitch – yes; Coleman – yes; Rowland – no; Robinson – yes.  Motion 
passed 4-1. 
 

iii. Resolution 2018-14:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing the City 
Manager to dispose of personal property, specifically a 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine, 
to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency thereof 
 
Resolution 2018-14 set for March 27, 2017 City Council Agenda 
 

iv. Approve Mayor and Council travel to Juneau, Alaska, March 18-22, 2018, for lobbying, 
the City’s Constituent Dinner and Annual Seafood Reception. 
 
Fitch made a motion to approve travel for Mayor and Council Members: Tungul, 
Gregory, and Robinson to Juneau, Alaska, March 18-22, 2018 for lobbying, the city’s 
Constituent Dinner and Annual Seafood Reception; Coleman seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  
Fitch – yes; Coleman – yes; Rowland – no; Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes.  Motion 
passed 4-1. 

Packet Page 3



3 
 

 
 

16. Executive Session 
 
8:08pm – Rowland made a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss matters which, if 
discussed in public, could harm the reputation of a person; and which if immediately disclosed would 
tend to adversely affect the finances of the city; Fitch seconded.  Motion passed by consensus. 
 

a. Discuss Contract Dispute regarding construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
b. Discuss City Manager Contract Negotiations 

 
17. Reconvene to Regular Session 

 
9:33pm – Council reconvened to Regular Session 
 

a. Resolution 2018-17:  A Resolution of  the Unalaska City Council authorizing the Mayor to sign 
an Employment Agreement between the City of Unalaska and Thomas E. Thomas to serve as 
City Manager of the City of Unalaska 
 
Rowland made a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-17; Fitch seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  
Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes; Fitch - yes; Coleman – yes; Rowland – yes.  Motion passed 5-0. 
 

18. Council Directives to City Manager 
19. Community Input / Announcements 
20. Adjournment:  Coleman made a motion to adjourn; Tungul seconded.  Motion passed by consensus. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:37pm. 

 
 
 
_________________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 

Packet Page 4



TO:  Mayor and Council 
FROM: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 
SUBJECT: City Manager’s Report 
DATE:  2/27/18 
 
PERSONNEL UPDATE: Both Mayor Kelty and Thomas Thomas have signed the negotiated 
City Manager Contract.  Mr. Thomas’s start date is set for March 19, 2018.  The Thomas 
family’s arrival to the island is scheduled for early March.  Additionally, the selection process 
for the Fire Chief continues to move forward. Interviews with three Fire Chief Candidates are 
scheduled for Friday, February 23, 2018.  

DMV:  Although the DMV has reopened, it is not yet fully functional.  It is taking some time to 
complete the audits and other requirements associated with transferring privileges on the State 
system from one user to another. Currently we can do vehicle registrations but we cannot yet 
make Identification Cards or Driver’s Licenses. The Department of Public Safety will continue 
to keep the public informed of the services available at the DMV. 

FY19 BUDGET:  Staff is preparing the draft the FY19 Budget and the associated CMMP in 
accordance with Council’s approved budget goals and schedule (see the attached schedule).  We 
are striving to coordinate the PSEA contract negotiations within the budget development and 
approval process. March, April and May will be an exciting - and busy - three months.  

UMC POSITIONS 3 & 4: The UMC Positions 3&4 Replacement Project is on 
schedule.  Turnagain Marine is on winter break but their subcontractor, ANCOR, is on 
site.  High mast light pole bases are being installed and trenching for electrical conduit is 
beginning. The newly created positions 3 and 4 have performed as expected for A Season thus 
far.  The Port has turned no business away due to construction, in fact has seen an increase in 
vessel traffic. Position 3 is being used for barge mooring and some fueling operations and 
Position 4 is available for offloads with forklift traffic and access to the warehouse.  Revenues 
from Positions 3 and 4 are solid and should meet and possibly exceed historic averages. 

BIG YELLOW TRUCKS: DPW Roads is cleaning out culverts and storm manholes around 
town so you might see the big yellow vactor truck parked in the streets. 

WIND POWER UPDATE: As part of the Wind Power Development and Integration Project 
(EL18C), wind energy engineer, Douglas Vaught from V3 Energy, will be in Unalaska the week 
of March 5th.  V3 completed the initial site visit and meeting with Ounalashka Corporation in 
November 2017.  Sites on Little South American and in Pyramid Valley are on the short list.  V3 
Energy is returning to conduct more thorough site inspections and present their findings to 
staff.  Doug Vaught will also give a brief wind energy presentation to high school students while 
in town.  The present Phase II (Pre-Design) of the Wind Power Project only calls for V3 to 
assess prospective temporary Meteorological Tower (MET) sites, determine basic grid 
requirements, and provide a report outlining their findings.  The next phase, should Council 
decide to move forward, would be to install 2 or 3 MET towers, and collect wind data for at least 
one full year. 

Packet Page 5



FY19 CMMP and  Budget  Schedule 

11/28/2017 Staff CMMP Kickoff Meeting: Review of Process from Planning Director. Initial discussion of projects, focus on 
new projects. Discussion

12/12/2017 Council Council Review & comment on Budget Schedule and Process (CMMP, Community Grants, & City Budget) Discussion

12/18/2017 Staff **Deadline for New CMMP Nominations & Updates to Existing CMMP Projects** Deadline

1/5/2018 Staff CMMP Staff and City Manager: Meeting to review nominations, provide feed- back, and prioritize projects Discussion

1/12/2018 Committee CMMP Technical Review Committee: Meeting to review nominations, identify questions and feedback, 
evaluate and prioritize projects Discussion

1/23/2018 Council Presentation of Revenue Projections and Determination of Budget Goals Discussion

1/26/2018 Staff **Updated CMMP Nominations & Supporting Documentation Deadline** Deadline

2/2/2018 Staff CMMP Staff and City Manager: Meeting to review updated and compiled nominations for final clarification Discussion

2/9/2018 Committee CMMP Technical Review Committee: Meeting to review updated and compiled nominations for final 
clarification and to evaluate & prioritize projects Discussion

2/9/2018 Staff **Departmental Budget Deadline** Deadline

2/13/2018 Council Draft CMMP Presentation to City Council (Planning Director) Discussion

2/20-23/2018 Staff City Manager and Finance Director meet with Departments to review budget and confirm capital requests for 
FY19 Discussion

3/2/2018 Staff CMMP Staff and City Manager: Meeting to review Draft CMMP for comment and suggestions Discussion

3/9/2018 Committee CMMP Technical Review Committee: Meeting to review Draft CMMP for comment, suggestions, and 
recommendation to City Council Recommendation

3/16/2018 Staff **Updated Departmental Budget Deadline, Goals and Objectives Deadline** Deadline

3/23/2018 Staff **Distribution of draft budgets, CMMP and UCSD to Council** Deadline

3/26/2018 Council Special Budget presentation: Overview, City departments & UCSD Discussion

3/27/2018 Council Special Budget presentation: CMMP, Budget, & Community Grant Requests (applicants presentations) Discussion

4/20/2018 Staff **CMMP Distribution to Council with meeting packet** Deadline

Set up contribution amount for UCSD; Define Community Suppport Grant Awards;                                          
and Adopt FY 19-23 CMMP Resolutions

Budget follow-up questions, comments, & direction Discussion

First reading of FY19 Budget Ordinance

Set property mill rate Resolution

5/22/2018 Council Public hearing, adoption of FY19 budget Ordinance

Legend:
Deadline
Selected Staff Meeting
Staff Committee Meeting
Council Meeting or Work Session

4/24/2018 Council

5/8/2018 Council

Packet Page 6



 
CITY OF UNALASKA 

 
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2018 

 
                                                                                                                                                                              
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

Memorandum to Council        1 
 
Graphical results         2 

General Government Revenue – Annual Budget vs. YTD Collected 
Percentage of General Government Revenue Collected 
General Government Expenditures – Annual Budget vs. YTD Actual 
Cash and Investments – Last twelve months 
Enterprise Funds – Budgeted vs. Actual Net Change without transfers 
Enterprise Funds – Budgeted vs. Actual Net Change with transfers 
 

General Fund  
 

Monthly Operating Summary       3 
 

Comparative Balance Sheet       4 
 

1% Sales Tax Fund         5 
 

Bed Tax Fund          6 
 
Enterprise Funds 
 
 Monthly Operating Summaries      7-8 
 
 Utility Revenue Recap Report      9 
          
 Revenue Detail Reports 
  Electric Fund        10 

Water Fund        11 
  Wastewater Fund       12 
  Solid Waste Fund       13 
  Ports & Harbors Fund       14 
  Airport Fund        15 
  Housing Fund        16 
 
 Comparative Balance Sheets 
  Electric Fund        17 
  Water Fund        18 
  Wastewater Fund       19 
  Solid Waste Fund       20 
  Ports & Harbors Fund       21 
  Airport Fund        22 
  Housing Fund        23 
 
Open Capital Projects Detail Report       24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Packet Page 7



1

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

TO: MAYOR AND CI1Y COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: CLAY DARNELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

THRU: ERIN REINDERS, ACTING CI1Y MANAGER 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18,2018 

RE: INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE 
SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY 31,2018 

In an effort to keep the Council informed about the financial activity of the City of 
Unalaska, the Finance Department has prepared interim financial reports for the seven 
months ended January 31, 2018. 

Fund/Departmental Highlights 

General Fund: 

• The AK Fisheries Business Shared Tax $3,649,322 and the AK Fisheries Resource 
Landing Shared Tax $4,291,531 were received in November. We expect to receive an 
additional $605,500 from the DCCED allocations before fiscal year end. 

• Investment earnings indicate a loss for the current month due to the mark-to-market 
value adjustment. Actual investment income received year to date represents 73% of 
the annual budget. 

• Information Systems expenditures are 65% of budget due to annual Software I 
Hardware Support and Computer Hardware I Software expenditures occurring in the 
first seven months of the year. 

Packet Page 8



2

City of Unalaska 
January 2018 

8,000,000 

7,000,000 

e.ooo.ooo 

5,000.000 

4,000 ,000 

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1.000 ,000 

General Government Revenues 
Annual Bud gat vs. YTD Collected 

Raw AK FisheriesAK Resource Property Tax Sales Tax lnveslment Olher 
Seafood Tax Business Landing Tax Earnings Revenues 

8,000,000 

7,000 ,000 

6,000,000 

5,000,000 

4 ,000,000 

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000 ,000 

500,000 

(500,000) 

(1 ,000,000) 

(1 ,500,000) 

Tax 

II Budget • Actual YTD 

General Government Expenditures 
Annual Budget vs. YTD Actual 

General 
Government 

Public Safety PublicWorl<s 

01 Budget • YTD 

Proprietary Funds 
Budgeted vs. Actual Net Increase/Decrease 

1!!12£! Capital and Transfers 

Paries, Culture 
and Recreation 

(2,000,000) ~===================:;:;;? 
Electric Water Waste Solld Ports Airport Housing 

Water Waste 

Percentage of General Government Revenue Collected 

100% 

90% 

60% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

180,000,000 

160,000,000 

140,000,000 

120,000,000 

100,000,000 

80,000,000 

60,000,000 

40,000,000 

20,000,000 

.. .. 

ft= 

Investments and Cash 
Last 12 Months 

• ill .. 

b: ~ I= I: !.:= 

• .. Ill 

1-

= I=: ill ~ 

,. 

b: 
Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan 

1,000 ,000 

500.000 

(500.000) 

(1 ,000 ,000) 

(1.500,000) 

• 102,134,933 c Investments- AML Pool • Cash • Interest receivable] 

Proprietary Funds 
Budgeted vs. Actual Nat Increase/Decrease 

WITH Capital and Transfers 

(2,000,000) ~============ 
Electric Water Waste Solid Ports Airport Housing 

Water Waste 

Packet Page 9



3

FUND - General Fund Data Date: 2116/2018 

General Fund Operating Monthly Summary- Month Ending January 2018 Page 1 of 1 

FY2018 FY2018 %OF FY2017 INC/(DEC) 
Budget January YTD BUD YTD Last Year 

REVENUES 
Raw Seafood Tax 5,300,000 154,288 2,267,936 43% 2,769,277 (501 ,341) 
AK Fisheries Business 3,900,000 0 3,649,322 94% 4,018,888 (369,566) 
AK Fisheries Resource Landing 5,300,000 0 4,291,531 81% 7,776,504 (3,484,973) 
Property Taxes 6,000,000 6,077 6,094,899 102% 5,971,943 122,956 
Sales Tax 7,000,000 522,447 4,401,952 63% 4,611,055 (209,104) 
Investment Earnings 1,300,000 (204,203) 76,539 6% (69,945) 146,483 
Other Revenues 4,217,227 76,290 2,027,552 48% 1,871,074 156,478 
Appropriated Fund Balance 0 0 0 0% 0 0 

Total General Fund Revenues 33,017,227 554,898 22,809,730 69% 26,948,797 (4, 139,066) 

EXPENDITURES 
Mayor & Council 558,810 56,973 280,218 50% 233,870 46,348 
City Administration 

City Manager's Office 437,189 19,615 186,956 43% 227,345 (40,388) 
Administration 1,124,823 46,745 643,667 57% 547,964 95,703 

Total City Administration 1,562,012 66,360 830,623 53% 775,309 55,315 
City Clerk 516,165 31 ,886 250,941 49% 286,129 (35, 188) 
Finance 

Finance 1,049,291 66,343 531,610 51% 543,623 (12,014) 
Information Systems 782,762 36,353 511,915 65% 408,690 103,225 

Total Finance 1,832,054 102,697 1,043,525 57% 952,314 91 ,211 
Planning 707,491 57,744 313,645 44% 216,747 96,897 
Public Safety 

Police and Admin 3,889,087 232,188 1,662,000 43% 1,535,842 126,158 
Corrections 924,391 75,774 452,710 49% 450,099 2,611 
Fire, EMS, and Communications 1,864,471 113,101 781,863 42% 672,917 108,946 - -Total Public Safety 6,677,949 421,064 2,896,572 43% 2,658,858 237,714 

Public Works 
DPW Admin & Engineering 753,685 55,684 367,273 49% 345,620 21,653 
Streets and Roads 3,027,448 231,546 1,344,975 44% 1,219,412 125,563 
Receiving and Supply 272,777 15,313 130,041 48% 149,152 (19,111) 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 1,112,762 78,473 516,826 46% 702,551 (185,724) 
Facilities Maintenance 1,339,631 138,958 741,085 55% 752,840 (11,755) 

Total Public Works 6,506,303 519,974 3,100,201 48% 3,169,576 (69,374) 
Parks, Culture & Recreation 

PCR Administration 218,192 24,893 129,076 59% 129,959 (884) 
Recreation Programs 701,407 35,638 315,797 45% 393,846 (78,049) 
Community Center Operations 942,263 57,243 429,477 46% 362,378 67,099 
Library 784,526 51,721 383,049 49% 381,362 1,687 
Aquatics Center 386,758 19,817 158,288 41% 133,912 24,376 
Parks 37,350 316 26,959 72% 24,431 2,528 

Total Parks, Culture & Recreation 3,070,495 189,628 1,442,645 47% 1,425,889 16,756 
Other Expenses 6,410,052 948,540 3,850,563 60% 3,788,212 62,352 

Total Operating Expenditures 27,841,330 2,394,864 14,008,934 50% 13,506,903 502,031 

Transfers To General Fund 0 0 0 0% 0 0 
Transfers To Special Revenue 0 0 0 0% 0 0 
Transfers To Capital Projects 793,000 0 793,000 100% 541,405 251,595 
Transfers To Enterprise Funds 0 0 0 0% 0 0 
Transfers To Enterprise Capital 1,173,994 0 1 '173,994 100% 3,468,367 (2,294,373) 

1,966,994 0 1,966,994 100% 4,009,772 (2,042,778) 

29,808,324 2,394,864 15,975,928 54% 17,516,675 (1 ,540,747) 

Surplusi(Deficit) 3,208,903 (1,839,967) 6,833,802 62% 9,432,122 {2,598,319) 

Packet Page 10



4

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 
Taxes 

Equity in Central Treasury 
Inventory 
Prepaid Items 
Advances To Other Funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
GENERAL FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31,2018 and January 31,2017 

Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Intergovernmental 
Retainage Payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 
Customer Deposits 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund Balance -Non Spendable 
Fund Balance - Committed 
Fund Balance - Assigned for Encumbrances 

Undesignated (deficit) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 

2018 

1,450 

14,445 

1,996,112 
73,889,398 

802,372 
165,694 

1,184,720 

78,054,191 

403,504 
1,390 

514,650 
2,907 
6,154 

928,605 

2,155,806 
14,000,000 
3,470,848 

57,498,932 

77,125,586 

78,054,191 

Totals 
2017 

1,488 

15,879 

1,932,232 
66,527,853 

749,480 
116,778 

1,392,960 

70,736,669 

424,777 
10,931 
15,877 

421,292 
910 

2,110 

875,898 

2,060,924 
14,000,000 
3,052,488 

50,747,359 

69,860,771 

70,736,669 

Packet Page 11



5

ASSETS 

Receivables 
Sales Tax Full Accrual 
Taxes 

Equity in Central Treasury 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Deferred Revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 

U ndesignated (deficit) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
1% SALES TAX 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31, 2018 and January 31,2017 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 

2018 

2,500 
586,730 

10,784,638 

11,373,868 

2,500 

2,500 

11,371,368 

11,371,368 

11,373,868 

Totals 
2017 

2,500 
551,989 

9,419,464 

9,973,952 

2,500 

2,500 

9,971,452 

9,971,452 

9,973,952 

Packet Page 12



6

ASSETS 

Receivables 
Accounts 
Taxes 

Equity in Central Treasury 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
BED TAX 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31, 2018 and January 31,2017 

Fund Balance - Assigned for Encumbrances 
Undesignated (deficit) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 

2018 

11,217 
259,725 

270,942 

72,917 
198,026 

270,942 

270,942 

Totals 
2017 

16,803 
223,125 

239,928 

72,917 
167,011 

239,928 

239,928 

Packet Page 13



7

Operating Monthly Summary- Month Ending January 2018 Page 1 of 2 

FY2018 FY2018 %OF FY2017 INC/(DEC) 
Budget January YTD BUD YTD Last Year --

Electric Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 17,255,299 1,737,294 10,656,492 62% 9,450,826 1,205,665 

Electric Line Repair & Maint 1,226,531 46,536 470,440 38% 423,156 47,284 
Electric Production 9,571 '114 876,066 5,752,535 60% 4,858,422 894,113 
Facilities Maintenance 464,187 5,652 84,698 18% 46,408 38,290 
Utility Administration 5,385,600 334,092 2,980,518 55% 2,943,903 36,615 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 59,247 2,109 19,938 34% 26,394 (6,456) 
Transfers Out 1,386,668 0 1,386,668 100% 263,070 1,123,598 

EXPENSES 18,093,347 1,264,454 10,694,796 59% 8,561,353 2,133,443 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (838,048) 472,840 (38,305) 889,473 (927,778) 

Water Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 2,586,020 201,937 1,350,367 52% 1,428,640 (78,273) 

Transfers Out 21,600 0 21,600 100% (128,033) 149,633 
Facilities Maintenance 83,917 4,686 31,721 38% 14,518 17,203 
Utility Administration 1,723,346 131,208 996,151 58% 935,700 60,451 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 34,366 682 6,728 20% 9,953 (3,224) 
Water Operations 1,364,784 81,715 669,762 49% 533,911 135,851 

EXPENSES 3,228,012 218,290 1,725,962 53% 1,366,049 359,914 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (641 ,992) (16,353) (375,595) 62,591 (438,186) 

Wastewater Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 2,531,305 214,968 1,304,497 52% 1,377,535 (73,038) 

Transfers Out 415,000 0 415,000 100% 181,377 233,623 
Facilities Maintenance 65,054 2,360 27,541 42% 23,757 3,784 
Utility Administration 1,944,515 142,337 1,080,351 56% 1,059,039 21,312 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 27,824 2,394 10,597 38% 7,487 3,110 
Wastewater Operations 2,139,634 109,150 788,674 37% 781,407 7,267 

EXPENSES 4,592,027 256,241 2,322,163 51% 2,053,067 269,096 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (2,060,722) (41 ,273) (1 ,017 ,666) (675,532) (342,135) 

Transfers In 1,072,156 0 1,072,156 100% 0 1 ,072,156 

Solid Waste Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 3,566,034 216,994 1,353,952 38% 1,288,626 65,326 

Facilities Maintenance 77,798 3,517 29,001 37% 49,290 (20,289) 
Solid Waste Operations 1,667,953 319,341 875,820 53% 638,669 237,151 
Utility Administration 1,594,546 70,873 827,858 52% 875,890 (48,033) 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 134,290 5,504 31,805 24% 20,902 10,903 
Transfers Out 1,105,000 75,000 1,104,950 100% 0 1,104,950 

EXPENSES 4,579,586 474,235 2,869,433 63% 1,584,751 1,284,682 

NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (1 ,013,552) (257,241) (1 ,515,481) (296,125) (1,219,356) 

Transfers In 184,704 0 184,704 100% 0 184,704 

Packet Page 14



8

Operating Monthly Summary - Month Ending January 2018 Page 2 of2 

FY2018 FY2018 %OF FY2017 INC/(DEC) 
Budget January YTD BUD YTD Last Year 

Ports & Harbors Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 7,499,238 624,206 4,329,249 58% 3,767,950 561,299 

Bobby Storrs Small Boat Harbor 168,888 8,134 67,556 40% 94,689 (27,134) 
CEM Small Boat Harbor 686,904 59,872 399,847 58% 355,826 44,021 
Facilities Maintenance 77,833 2,305 10,394 13% 24,474 (14,080) 
Harbor Office 4,856,701 380,986 2,635,423 54% 2,583,031 52,392 
Ports Security 79,918 0 11,460 14% 7,952 3,508 
Spit & Light Cargo Docks 524,253 31,252 289,683 55% 249,859 39,824 
Unalaska Marine Center 1,060,534 69,327 551,228 52% 556,226 (4,998) 
Veh & Equip Maintenance 58,517 4,325 22,655 39% 23,983 (1 ,328) 
Transfers Out 10,000,000 0 10,000,000 100% 4,450,000 5,550,000 

EXPENSES 17,513,548 556,200 13,988,246 80% 8,346,040 5,642,206 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (1 0,014,31 0) 68,006 (9,658,996) (4,578,089) (5,080,907) 

Airport Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 552,420 42,639 284,767 52% 301,516 (16,750) 
--

Airport Admin/Operations 710,302 45,441 357,871 50% 382,274 (24,403) 
Facilities Maintenance 213,110 9,599 53,653 25% 141,408 (87,754) 

EXPENSES 923,412 55,040 411,524 45% 523,682 (112,158) 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (370,992) (12,401) (126,757) (222,165) 95,408 

Housing Proprietary Fund 

REVENUES 275,242 11,913 145,191 53% 144,779 412 

Facilities Maintenance 179,634 7,992 63,582 35% 53,557 10,025 
Housing Admin & Operating 360,701 25,887 196,396 54% 190,004 6,392 

EXPENSES 540,335 33,879 259,978 48% 243,561 16,417 
NET EARNINGS/(LOSS) (265,092) (21 ,966) (114,787) (98,782) (16,005) 

Packet Page 15



9

FY18 Budget 
Month Electric Water 

Jui-17 1,840,293 368,107 
Aug-17 1,938,294 396,818 
Sep-17 1,327,507 105,776 
Oct-17 1,284,656 115,907 
Nov-17 1,186,456 97,898 
Dec-17 1,341,991 63,925 
Jan-18 1,742,294 201,937 
Feb-18 0 0 
Mar-18 0 0 
Apr-18 0 0 
May-18 0 0 
Jun-18 0 0 
YTD Totals 10,661,492 1,350,367 
FY18 Budget 17,864,211 3,105,685 
%to budget 59.7 43.5 

City of Unalaska 
Utility Revenue Report 

Summary 

Waste Solid 
Water Waste 
201,658 209,898 
358,352 236;139 

13,502 209,124 
196,827 199,323 
171,544 147,838 
147,647 134,636 
214,968 216,994 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

1.304.497 1,353,952 
3,034,723 4,272,101 

43.0 31.7 

01/31/18 
Monthly FY18 FY17YTD YTD 
Revenue Revenue Revenue Inc/( Dec) 

2,619,956 2,619,956 2,135,511 484,445 
2,929,603 5,549,559 4,433,764 1 '115,794 
1,655,910 7,205,469 6,750,620 454,849 
1,796,713 9,002,181 8,512,726 489,456 
1,603,736 10,605,917 10,210,214 395,703 
1,688,199 12,294,116 11,590,601 703,515 
2,376,193 14,670,308 13,017,150 1,653,158 

0 0 15,083,600 0 
0 0 17,269,914 0 
0 0 18,727,753 0 
0 0 20,066,872 0 
0 0 21 ,512,492 0 

14.670.308 
28,276,720 

51.9 

Packet Page 16



10

FY18 Budget Small Large P.C.E. 
Monlh Residential General General Industrial Assist 

Jul-17 86,889 79,546 134,070 1.496,035 41,122 
Aug-17 96,479 84,006 160,722 1,537,544 55,347 
Sep-17 95,286 89,293 143,417 906,216 51,235 
Oct-17 117,853 102,808 163,220 837,491 58,169 
Nov-17 113,961 103,051 148,584 757,169 58,944 
Dec-17 121,035 105,664 150,798 909,280 51,678 
Jan-18 129,959 115,497 169,Q42 1,245,126 77,299 
Feb-18 
:Mat-1_6 
Apr-18 
May-18 
Jun-18 
YTDTotals 761.463 679.865 1.069.853 7.688.860 393.794 
FY18 Budget 1,127,831 1,266,314 2,538,359 11,488,785 627,396 
%of Budget 67.5 53.7 42.1 66.9 62.8 

Kwh Sold 
Residential SM. Gen 

FY18 (Includes Large Total FY18 
Monlh Street lights) General Industrial Kwh Sold 

July 270,472 263,649 448,556 5,264,875 6,247,552 
August 300,170 279,978 510,275 5,382,768 6.473,191 
September 288,134 282,835 458,198 2,917,251 3,946,418 
October 332,932 308,701 487,179 2,563,826 3,712,638 
November 325,725 311,963 452,885 2,335,045 3,425,618 
December 341,665 316,836 443,946 2,749,930 3,852,377 
January 372,912 352,826 510,898 3,810,485 5,047,121 
February 0 
March 0 
APril 0 
May 0 
June 0 
Total 2;232.010 2,116,788 3.31 1.937 25.044.160 32,704 915 
Percent Sold 6.8% 6.5% 10.1% 76.6% 100.0% 

City of Unalaska 
Electric Revenue Report 

Electric Fund 

Other Monthly 
Revenues Revenue 

2,632 1,840,293 
4,197 1,938,294 

42,058 1,327,507 
5,115 1,284,656 
4,747 1,186,456 
3,536 1,341,991 
5,371 1,742,294 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

67.656 10.661,492 
815,526 17,864,211 

8.3 59.7 

Total FY17 Increase 
Kwh Sold (Decrease) 
3,601,248 2,646,304 
6,153,555 319,636 
4,771,757 (825,339) 
4,127,043 (414,405) 
3,970,911 (545,293) 
3,996,929 (144,552) 
4,006,182 1,040,939 
5,717,736 0 
6,520,480 0 
4,252,391 0 
4,402,573 0 
4.315.458 0 

55 836,263 2,077.290 

01131118 
FY18YTO FY17 YTD YTD 
Revenue Revenue lnci(Dec) 
1,840,293 1,094,351 745,942 
3,778,587 3,021,833 756,754 
5,106,094 4,489,276 616,818 
6,390,750 5,721,951 668,800 
7,577,207 6,922,880 654,327 
8,919,197 8,167,038 752,160 

10,661,492 9,450,826 1,210,665 
0 11,283,887 0 
0 13,277,258 0 
0 14,596,019 0 
0 15,939,357 0 
0 17.266.272 0 

Generator Fuel 
FY18 

Average 
PriosFuel 

1.9425 
2.0957 
2.3435 
2.4353 
2.4618 
2.2824 
2,3841 

2.2n9 
14.21% 

% Change from Prior Year 

FY17 
Average 

Price Fuel 
2.0050 
1,7797 
1.9143 
1.9047 
2.0043 
1.9799 
2.1193 
2.0840 
2.0177 
2.0589 
2.0609 
20047 
1.9945 

FY18 FY17 
Cumulative Cumulative 
~wh Sold l<wh Sold 
6,247,552 3,601,248 

12,720,743 9,754,603 
16,667,161 14,526,560 
20,379,799 18,653,603 
23,805,417 22,624,514 
27,657,794 26,621,443 
32,704,915 30,627,625 
32,704,915 36,345,361 
32,704,915 42,865,841 
32,704,915 47,118,232 
32,704,915 51,520,805 
32.704.915 55.636,263 

Packet Page 17



11

FY18 Unmetered Metered 
Month Sales Sales 

Jul-17 12,848 354,689 
AuQ-17 12,855 384,019 
Sep-17 12,790 91,860 
Oct-17 12,884 102,523 
Nov-17 12,888 84,794 
Dec-17 12,873 51,075 
Jan-18 12,820 189,097 
Feb-18 
Mar-18 
Apr-18 

May-18 
Jun-18 
YTD Totals 89,957 1,258,058 
FY18 Budget 158,393 2,373,486 
%of Budget 56.8 53.0 

Million Gallons Produced 
FY18 FY18 Water FY17Water 
Month Produced Produced 

July 161.160 149.478 
August 163.498 156.704 
September 64.047 103.629 
October 59.855 58.010 
November 49.181 52.400 
December 35.082 46.102 
January 92.600 102.784 
February 185.237 
March 188.804 
April 78.869 
May 43.885 
June 118.245 
Total 625.423 1284.147 

City of Unalaska 
Water Revenue Report 

Water Fund 

Other Monthly 
Revenues Revenue 

570 368,107 
(57) 396,818 

1,126 105,776 
501 115,907 
215 97,898 
(23) 63,925 
20 201,937 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

2,352 1,350.367 
573,806 3,105,685 

0.4 43.5 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

11_682 
6.794 

(39.582) 
1.845 

(3.219) 
(11.020) 
(10.184) 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

(43.684 

01/31/18 
FY18 YTD FY17YTD YTD 
Revenue Revenue lnc/(Dec) 

368,107 347,751 20,356 
764,925 705,591 59,333 
870,701 933,574 (62,873) 
986,608 1,049,789 (63,181) 

1,084,505 1,143,042 (58,536) 
1,148,430 1,231,114 (82,684) 
1,350,367 1,428,640 (78,273) 

0 1,871,993 0 
0 2,318,097 0 
0 2,482,622 0 

0 2,551,069 0 
0 2,812,592 0 

FY18 Water FY17Water 
Cumulative Cumulative 

161.160 149.478 
324.658 306.182 
388.705 409.811 
448.560 467.821 
497.741 520.221 
532.823 566.323 
625.423 669.107 

0.000 854.344 
0.000 1043.148 
0.000 1122.017 
0.000 1165.902 
0.000 1284.147 

Packet Page 18



12

FY18 Unmetered Metered 
Month Sales Commercial 

Jul-17 37,733 156,751 
Aug-17 37,754 311,278 
Sep-17 37,561 (34,322) 
Oct-17 37,839 138,557 
Nov-17 37,958 125,270 
Dec-17 38,018 98,689 
Jan-18 37,860 162,141 
Feb-18 
Mar-18 
Apr-18 
May-18 
Jun-18 
YTD Totals 264,723 958.364 
FY18 Budget 464,010 1,942,985 
%of Budget 57.1 49.3 

FY18 FY18 FY17 
Month Effluent (Gal) Effluent (Gal) 

July 10,650,000 11,309,000 
August 11,466,000 11,829,000 
September 9,824,000 12,047,000 
October 12,304,000 14,938,000 
November 10,671,000 12,195,000 
December 11,461,000 12,015,000 
January 15,360,000 14,737,000 
February 13,914,000 
March 13,451,000 
April 11,385,000 
May 10,067,000 
June 10,961,000 
Total 81 ,736,000 148.848,000 

City of Unalaska 
Wastewater Revenue Report 

Wastewater Fund 

Metered Other Monthly 
Industrial Revenues Revenue 

3,638 3,536 201,658 
3,012 6,308 358,352 
1,805 8,458 13,502 
6,925 13,505 196,827 
4,359 3,957 171,544 
1,220 9,720 147,647 
6,433 8,534 214,968 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

27.392 54,019 1,304,497 
44,255 583,473 3,034,723 

61.9 9.3 43.0 

Increase FY18 
(Decrease) Cumulative 

(659,000) 10,650,000 
(363,000) 22,116,000 

(2,223,000) 31,940,000 
(2,634,000) 44,244,000 
(1 ,524,000) 54,915,000 

(554,000) 66,376,000 
623,000 81,736,000 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

(7,334,000) 

01/31/18 
FY18 YTD FY17 YTD YTD 
Revenue Revenue lnc/(Dec) 

201,658 202,091 (434) 
560,010 432,923 127,087 
573,512 646,453 (72,941) 
770,339 847,978 (77,639) 
941,883 1,028,280 (86,397) 

1,089,530 1,169,143 (79,613) 
1,304,497 1,377,536 (73,039) 

0 1,605,812 0 
0 1,825,352 0 
0 2,020,719 0 
0 2,174,024 0 
0 2,361 ,223 0 

FY17 
Cumulative 
11,309,000 
23,138,000 
35,185,000 
50,123,000 
62,318,000 
74,333,000 
89,070,000 

102,984,000 
116,435,000 
127,820,000 
137,887,000 
148,848,000 

Packet Page 19



13

FY18 Residential Tipping 
Month Fees Fees 

Jul-17 26,328 165.767 
Aug-17 26,360 174,030 
Sep-17 26,360 157,056 
Oct-17 26.407 123,223 
lllov-17 26,461 97,722 
Dec-17 26,542 83,429 
Jan-18 26,544 153,311 
Feb-18 
Mar-18 
Apr-18 
May-18 
Jun-18 
YTDTotals 185,002 954,539 
FY18 Budget 261,982 1,966,240 
%of Budget 70.6 48.5 

FY18 FY18 Tons FY17 Tons 
Month of Waste of Waste 

July 676.63 687.27 
August 722.85 774.78 
September 621.56 705.97 
October 562.92 672.35 
November 414.12 426.54 
December 392.14 433.12 
January 663.00 577.07 
February 756.52 
March 801.04 
April 575.39 
May 453.49 
June 551.95 
Total 4053.22 7415.49 

City of Unalaska 
Solid Waste Revenue Report 

Solid Waste Fund 

Other Monthly 
Revenue Revenue 

17,803 209,898 
35,749 236,139 
25,708 209,124 
49,693 199,323 
23,655 147,838 
24,665 134,636 
37,139 216,994 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

214,412 1.353.952 
2,043,879 4,272,101 

10.5 31.7 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

(10.64) 
(51.93) 
(84.41) 

(109.43) 
{12.42) 
(40.98) 
85.93 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(223.88 

01/31/18 
FY18 YTD FY17YTD YTD 
Revenue Revenue lnci(Dec) 

209,898 207.477 2,421 
446,037 438,109 7,928 
655,161 640,101 15,060 
854,485 845,016 9.469 

1,002,322 983,865 18,457 
1,136,959 1,111,239 25,719 
1,353,952 1,288,626 65,326 

0 1,525,726 0 
0 1,771,790 0 
0 1,955,660 0 
0 2,103,790 0 
0 2,269,245 0 

Cummulalive 
FY18 Tons FY17Tons 
of Wast~ of Waste 

676.63 687.27 
1399.48 1462.05 
2021.04 2168.02 
2583.96 2840.37 
2998.08 3266.91 
3390.22 3700.03 
4053.22 4277.10 

0.00 5033.62 
0.00 5834.66 
0.00 6410.05 
0.00 6863.54 
0.00 7415.49 

Packet Page 20



CITY OF UNALASKA

UMC Dock Spit Dock Small Boat Harbor
Docking/ Wharfage Rental Utility Docking / Utility Docking / Utility Dockage / Wharfage Docking/ Utility Other Monthly FY18 YTD % of FY17 YTD YTD

Month Year Moorage Fees Fees Fees Moorage Fees Moorage Fees Moorage Rental/Util Moorage Fees Rev&Fees Revenue Revenue Budget Revenue Inc(Dec)

Jul 2017 104,097 267,311 39,394 20,302 31,506       7,218         6,861         867        5,528      8,941      9,510        9,572      7,688 518,793 518,793 7.3% 517,401 1,392
Aug 2017 146,406 408,839 42,693 32,424 32,599       9,570         3,750         508        18,755    8,842      7,904        5,106      45,275 762,672 1,281,466 18.1% 1,147,427 134,039
Sept 2017 132,445 476,362 44,370 35,119 77,516       8,923         5,244         749        7,755      13,914    20,082      11,395    4,388 838,263 2,119,729 29.9% 1,824,001 295,728
Oct 2017 112,292 294,890 44,636 25,434 47,066       9,770         10,709       623        9,383      16,218    83,898      24,460    2,061 681,441 2,801,170 39.5% 2,487,841 313,328
Nov 2017 89,583 105,772 2,213 22,444 21,120       12,098       4,054         567        7,403      9,102      62,745      35,841    5,691 378,634 3,179,803 44.9% 2,946,454 233,349
Dec 2017 29,945 33,417 83,128 12,224 34,922       13,755       16,624       2,116     1,798      2,671      245,596    47,469    1,573 525,240 3,705,043 52.3% 3,236,011 469,033
Jan 2018 119,366 229,738 42,349 67,588 30,502       11,450       (1,422)        2,342     19,818    17,027    26,111      58,302    1,036 624,206 4,329,249 61.1% 3,767,952 561,297
Feb 2018 0 0 0.0% 4,358,293 0
Mar 2018 0 0 0.0% 5,126,116 0
Apr 2018 0 0 0.0% 5,868,505 0
May 2018 0 0 0.0% 6,236,350 0
Jun 2018 0 0 0.0% 7,064,922 0
Totals 734,134 1,816,329 298,783 215,535 275,232 72,785 45,820 7,772 70,440 76,716 455,846 192,146 67,712 4,329,249
Loc total 3,064,782 348,016 53,592
Loc percent 70.8% 8.0% 1.2%
FY18 Budget 1,340,000 3,095,000 600,000 360,000 418,000     100,000     85,000       13,090   120,000  81,700    540,000    260,000  73,000 7,085,790
% to Budget 54.8% 58.7% 49.8% 59.9% 65.8% 72.8% 53.9% 59.4% 58.7% 93.9% 84.4% 73.9% 92.8% 61.1%
 

PORTS RECEIVABLES
Over Over Over Total % Past Due Cash

Month Year Current 30 Days 60 Days 90 Days Due 90 Days + Received

Jul 2017 510,987 144,274 19,556 2,806 677,623 0.4% 360,703
Aug 2017 718,931 239,062 29,216 22,393 1,009,603 2.2% 432,591
Sept 2017 950,095 28,805 13,655 9,950 1,002,505 1.0% 871,041
Oct 2017 491,994 177,444 106,768 18,150 794,356 2.3% 889,589
Nov 2017 405,589 74,945 13,063 124,299 617,896 20.1% 469,848
Dec 2017 519,130 143,088 48,468 131,714 842,399 15.6% 300,737
Jan 2018 602,743 173,238 58,234 49,927 884,141 5.6% 582,465
Feb 2018 0 0.0%
Mar 2018 0 0.0%
Apr 2018 0 0.0%
May 2018 0 0.0%
Jun 2018 0 0.0%

    YTD Cash Received 3,906,973

   FY18 PORTS REVENUE

Cargo Dock CEM

147,155 647,992
3.4% 15.0%

14 Packet Page 21



15

MONTHLY MISC 
MONTH YEAR LEASES INCOME 

JUL 2017 39,050 24 
AUG 2017 39,050 200 
SEP 2017 39,050 35 
OCT 2017 39,038 28 
NOV 2017 38,922 26 
DEC 2017 40,810 32 
JAN 2018 38,980 2,816 
FEB 2018 
MAR 2018 
APR 2018 
MAY 2018 
JUN 2018 
TOTAL 274,901 3,162 
FY17 BUDGET 544,000 200 
%TO BUDGET 50.5% 1580.9% 

RECEIVABLE BALANCES 
CURRENT OVER 

MONTH YEAR 30 DAYS 

JUL 2017 40,442 32,044 
AUG 2017 38,091 28,825 
SEP 2017 38,614 19,296 
OCT 2017 40,853 21,939 
NOV 2017 40,982 30,513 
DEC 2017 40,381 21,671 
JAN 2018 41,371 22,287 
FEB 2018 
MAR 2018 
APR 2018 
MAY 2018 
JUN 2018 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
FY18 AIRPORT REVENUE 

LATE MONTHLY FY18 YTD 
FEES REVENUE REVENUE 

658 39,733 39,733 
797 40,048 79,781 
900 39,985 119,765 
827 39,893 159,658 
828 39,776 199,434 
881 41,724 241,158 
842 42,639 283,797 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

5,734 283,797 
3,500 547,700 

163.8% 51 .8% 

OVER OVER 
60 DAYS 90 DAYS 

21,268 57,043 
21,124 73,578 
28,364 79,851 
21,450 81 '164 
21,455 75,994 
21,503 82,551 
21,453 78,067 

%OF FY17 YTD YTD 
BUDGET REVENUE INC/(DEC\ 

7.3% 41,806 (2,073) 
14.6% 86,793 (7,012) 
21 .9% 131,096 (11,331) 
29.2% 173,963 (14,305) 
36.4% 216,738 (17,304) 
44.0% 256,362 (15,204) 
51.8% 301,516 (17,719) 

0.0% 308,973 0 
0.0% 355,500 0 
0.0% 438,344 0 
0.0% 477,859 0 
0.0% 517,529 0 
0.0% 

TOTAL %PAST DUE CASH 
DUE 90 DAYS+ RECEIVED 

150,798 37.8% 37,118 
161,618 45.5% 29,004 
166,125 48.1% 40,820 
165,406 49.1% 45,692 
168,944 45.0% 37,763 
166,107 49.7% 46,900 
163,178 47.8% 48,960 

0 0.0% 
0 0.0% 
0 0.0% 
0 0.0% 
0 0.0% 

YTD TOTAL 286,256 

Packet Page 22



16

FY 18 HOUSING RENTAL REVENUE 

HOUSING MISC. MONTHLY FY18 YTD %OF FY17 YTD YTD 
MONTH YEAR RENTALS REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE BUDGET REVENUE INC/(DEC\ 
JUL 2017 20,000 20,000 20,000 7.4% 29,400 (9,400) 
AUG 2017 22,168 22,168 42,168 15.6% 52,182 (1 0,015) 
SEP 2017 21 ,600 21 ,600 63,768 23.6% 74,192 (10,425) 
OCT 2017 22,185 22,185 85,953 31.8% 85,442 510 
NOV 2047 19,825 19,825 105,778 39.1% 109,209 (3,431) 
DEC 2017 27,500 27,500 133,278 49.3% 118,851 14,427 
JAN 2018 11 ,913 11 ,913 145,191 53.7% 144,779 412 
FEB 2018 0 0 0.0% 157,329 0 
MAR 2018 0 0 0.0% 178,293 0 
APR 2018 0 0 0.0% 192,843 0 
MAY 2018 0 0 0.0% 214,593 0 
JUN 2018 0 0 0.0% 236193 0 
TOTAL 145 191 0 145 191 
FY18 Budget 270,564 0 270,564 
%TO BUDGET 53.7% 53.7% 

Packet Page 23



17

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31, 2018 and January 31, 2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 

Equity in Central Treasury 
Inventory 
Restricted Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Equipment, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 
Deferred Charge on Refunding 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Retainage Withheld 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Unamortized Premium (Rev Bonds) 
Customer Deposits 
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - L T 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

Long Term Debt 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

Revenue Bonds - Long Term 
Unamortized Premium - Long Term 
Advances From General Fund 

TOTAL Long Term Debt 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

1,588,961 1,152,159 
123,977 309,882 

8,905,946 6,841,328 
1,171,488 925,469 
4,243,004 4,236,081 

16,033,376 13,464,919 

212,598 212,598 
28,992,981 29,903,410 

6,814,405 6,579,811 
20,761,243 22,311,825 

2,145,890 1,093,533 

58,927,117 60,101,177 

854,140 396,665 
2,320,631 2,470,349 

3,174,771 2,867,014 

78,135,264 76,433,111 

207,999 264,235 
222,666 253,385 

1,276 
282,035 297,107 
117,181 117,181 
101,564 117,926 
208,240 208,240 

1,139,686 1,259,350 

3,422,704 2,303,652 

3,422,704 2,303,652 

36,717 37,807 

36,717 37,807 

25,120,000 26,155,000 
1,795,897 1,913,078 

976,480 1,184,720 

27,892,377 29,252,798 

32,491,483 32,853,607 

45,643,781 43,579,504 

Packet Page 24



18

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31,2018 and January 31,2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 
Special assessments 

Equity in Central Treasury 
Inventory 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Equipment, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Retainage Withheld 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Notes Payable 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - LT 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

Long Term Debt 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

Advances From General Fund 
TOTAL Long Term Debt 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

191,943 182,966 
(367,895) 

712 712 
9,372,480 8,313,048 

332,600 335,030 

9,529,840 8,831,756 

125,074 125,074 
13,458,804 13,617,738 
7,432,737 7,941,988 

184,592 160,995 
505,383 739,357 

21,706,589 22,585,152 

326,983 145,700 

326,983 145,700 

31,563,411 31,562,608 

99,189 104,631 
139 

28,433 
181,963 
50,030 54,981 

359,614 159,750 

1,328,664 885,220 

1,328,664 885,220 

8,064 8,496 

8,064 8,496 

3,275,332 3,488,313 

3,275,332 3,488,313 

4,971,674 4,541,779 

26,591,738 27,020,829 

Packet Page 25



19

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31,2018 and January 31,2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Special assessments 

Equity in Central Treasury 
Inventory 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Equipment, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Retainage Withheld 
Notes Payable 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - LT 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

Long Term Debt 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

Advances From General Fund 
TOTAL Long Term Debt 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

203,923 195,430 
21,260 23,275 

6,121,931 6,555,141 
32,860 33,424 

6,379,974 6,807,271 

12,883 12,883 
27,946,929 28,744,030 

5,907,311 6,382,260 
116,746 160,779 
953,775 305,042 

34,937,644 35,604,993 

336,907 123,814 

336,907 123,814 

41,654,525 42,536,078 

130,945 124,702 
600,124 1,078,284 
471,791 471,791 

22,007 23,813 

1,224,868 1,698,590 

1,300,598 779,341 

1,300,598 779,341 

2,974 3,482 

2,974 3,482 

7,242,658 7,714,454 

7,242,658 7,714,454 

9,771,097 10,195,867 

31,883,428 32,340,211 

Packet Page 26



20

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
SOLIDWASTE ENTERPRISE FUND 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31, 2018 and January 31, 2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Equity in Central Treasury 
Inventory 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Equipment, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Retainage Withheld 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Notes Payable 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - LT 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

Long Term Debt 
Advances From General Fund 
Landfill Closure 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

TOTAL Long Term Debt 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

178,275 144,625 
8,907,393 9,248,842 

55,052 51,942 

9,140,719 9,445,409 

651,474 651,474 
1,120,865 1,228,282 

16,517,497 16,908,274 
295,762 357,201 

42,330 305,100 

18,627,928 19,450,332 

313 ,576 136,128 

313,576 136,128 

28,082,223 29,031,869 

88,797 81,969 
4,290 

22,567 43,925 
254,232 

7,943 6,943 

373,539 137,127 

1,223,455 789,391 

1,223,455 789,391 

12,714 13,137 

12,714 13,137 

4,576,167 4,838,357 
5,553,732 5,348,458 

10,129,899 10,186,816 

11,739,607 11,126,471 

16,342,616 17,905,398 

Packet Page 27



21

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
PORTS & HARBORS ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31,2018 and January 31,2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 

Equity in Central Treasury 
Restricted Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Equipment, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Intergovernmental AP 
Retainage Withheld 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Revenue Bonds - Current 
Unamortized Premium (Rev Bonds) 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - L T 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

Long Term Debt 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

Revenue Bonds - Long Tem1 
Unamortized Premium - Long Term 

TOTAL Long Term Debt 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

150 150 

874,141 480,035 
367,894 

24,475,399 14,542,001 
2,899,058 2,500 

28,616,643 15,024,686 

2,037,870 2,037,870 
1,154,460 1,196,746 

72,251,881 70,643,023 
71,017 19,500 

28,318,069 11 597,974 

103,833,297 85,495,114 

533,099 225,447 

533,099 225,447 

132,983,039 100,745,246 

167,219 146,622 
2,097,013 2,097,013 

4,104 
85,250 72,986 

220,000 210,000 
60,454 5,502 

10,700 

2,629,936 2,546,927 

2,073,430 1,320,868 

2,073,430 1,320,868 

19 158 19,891 

19,158 19,891 

33,090,000 3,655,000 
1,485,612 71,531 

34,575,612 3,726,531 

39,298,136 7,614,218 

93,684,903 93,131,029 

Packet Page 28



22

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31,2018 and January 31,2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Equity in Central Treasury 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 
Construction in Progress 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Intergovernmental AP 
Retainage Withheld 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations - LT 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

159,178 160,322 
1,562,090 1,324,974 

1,721,268 1,485,296 

2,442,910 2,650,953 
413,871 495,725 

19,606 

2,856,781 3,166,284 

54,731 25,080 

54,731 25,080 

4,632,780 4,676,660 

4,892 5,556 
3,752 3,752 

8,594 
11,000 11,000 

19,644 28,902 

217,988 145,458 

217,988 145,458 

2,346 2,417 

2,346 2,417 

239,978 176,777 

4,392,802 4,499,883 

Packet Page 29



23

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
HOUSING ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
January 31, 2018 and January 31, 2017 

ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Current Assets 
Receivables 

Accounts 
Equity in Central Treasury 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Land 
Buildings, Net 
Other Improvements, Net 

TOTAL Current Assets 

TOTAL Property, Plant & Equipment 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Deferred Outflows 

TOTAL ASSETS and DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities 
Retainage Withheld 
Customer Deposits 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Pension Obligations- LT 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension Related 

TOTAL Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL Deferred Inflows 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Totals 
2018 2017 

3,650 3,650 
524,746 1,367,705 

528,396 1,371,355 

269,577 269,577 
3,935,036 4,114,429 

70,706 58,373 

4,275,319 4,442,380 

41,119 18,185 

41,119 18,185 

4,844,835 5,831,920 

3,892 4,492 
569 

16,490 12,247 

20,382 17,309 

150,922 94,821 

150,922 94,821 

3,167 3,222 

3,167 3,222 

174,471 115,352 

4,670,364 5,716,568 

Packet Page 30



24

OPEN CAPITAL PROJECTS AS OF 01/31/18 

MUNISID J DESCRIPTION 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
Public Safety 
PS602 NEW FIRE ENGINE 
PSI SA REPEATER SITE UPGRADE 
PSISB DPS RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
PSISC HAYSTACK SECURITY FF.NCING 
Public Works 
DOSIO S-CURVE PATHWAYS 
PW004 lLULA .LAKE DRAINAGE 
PW203 CITYWIDE MUL TlPLE LOCATION DRAINA011 
PW301 SHORE PROl'EC"I'ION & EROSION CONTROL 
PW401 SUMMER BAY BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 

Education 
lss60I IUCSD PLAYGROUND RENOVATION 

Other 
/00001 IGJS ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY 

ELECTRIC 
Electric 
EL11B OLD PH BATTERY SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 
EL17C CAPT AJNS BAY ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

EL302 POWERHOUSE ENGINE4' 7 550 900.82 CAP FY IS 
ELISA 
EL18B 
EL18C 

WATER 
Water 
WA11B 
WAJ7C 
WAI7D 
WA304 
WA402 
WA501 
WA504 

WA18A 

GENERA TOR SETS REBUILD 
AUTOMATIC METER READ SYSTEM 
WIND ENERGY/El.ECTRIC PRODUCTION 

FIBER OPTIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOP 
PYRAMID WTP MICRO TURBINES 
WATER TRUCK FLLL!NGSTATION 
WATER SUPPLY DEVELOP PHASE II 
WATER FLOW OPT!MlZA T!ON 
PYRAMID WATER STORAGE TANK 
WATER UTILITY AUTO METER READ 

GENERAL HILL WATER BOOSTER PUMP 

WASTEWATER 
Wastewater 
J0519 WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

WWI78 FlBER OPTICJNI'RASTRUCTUREDEVELOP 

WWI7C LIFT STATIONS 2&5 DlSCHARGEPlPE 

WW18A DELTA WAY EMERGENCY SEWER LINE REPAIR 

SOLID WASTE 

CELLS 3&4 PARTIAL CLOSURE 

Ports & Harbors 
Ports 
PH17B UMC SECURITY FENCING 

PH17C CEMBREAKWATERREPAIR 

PH17D UMC EXPANSION CONSTRUCTION 

PH201 DREDGE ENTRANCE CHANNEL-COE RECON 
PH301 UMC POSITIONS ill & IV REPLACEMENT & EXPANSION 

PH601 LIGHT CARGO DOCK EXPANSION 

PH602 LIGHT CARGO DOCK & UMC DREDGING 
PH905 ROBERTSTORRSSBHIMPROVEA&B 

AIRPORT 
Airport 

IAP18A IArRPORT TERMINAL ROOF REPLACEMENT 

HOUSING 

LI!AR RD DUPLEX KITCHEN RENOVATION 

TOTALS 

BUDGET 
I~Y2018 REVISED I EXPENSED rNCUMBERED 

$ 737,;73 $ 6;o 3;0_00 $ 
$ 110,000 $ $ -
$ 500,000 $ s 
$ 139.000 $ $ 

$ 174,000 $ 65..706 s . 
$ 1,078.312 s I 07.827 $ 851.312 
$ 3,450 000 $ 2,261 ,674 s 1.045,699 
$ 265.000 $ 144,836 $ 

$ 2.330.307 $ 2,103.130 s 13 336 

42.500 3.500 
45_, 000 45.000 

Is 300,000 I s 5,442 Is 

Is 100.000 I s Is 

s 263.070 $ 50.670 $ 17,52.7 

s 2,650,836 $ ].7 17.874 $ 11 8 103 
$ 8.575,088 s 7,917 504 $ 4 158 
$ I 267.306 s 894 $ 814.822 
$ 119.362 $ . $ 

$ 200000 $ 9,848 $ 38.832 

s 59. 127 s $ 
$ 50,000 $ s . 
$ 159,325 $ $ 

s 560.020 s 363.996 $ 

s 99,500 s 14.]40 s 79.650 
s 625 000 s 93 .662 s 
$ 106,052 $ 33.]84 $ -
$ 21,600 $ - $ 

$ 31 ,747,827 s 30,301.793 $ 162.]78 
$ 59,127 $ $ 
$ U2.250 $ 5.007 $ 

s 415,000 s 337,479 $ 48.521 

$ 325,000 s $ 498 

s 150,000 s 110.000 s 
s 39,000,000 s 21.421 .040 s 14.671 640 
s 1,500,000 $ 749,088 s 
s 3,167 358 $ 3,078 464 s 12,193 
$ 4.245.650 $ 2.959,478 s 60.109 
.$ 109.650 $ - s 
$ 50,000 $ $ 22,360 

14o,ooo 1 s Is 

106,289,834 74 ,594,317 17,981,298 

Page 1 of 1 

1

MUNTS AVAILABLE rENDING ENCUMB 

1
~CTUAL I CLOSE-OUT FY COMPLETED 
AVAILABLE 

$ 87 2.> $ 87,223 18 
$ 110,000 s \10,000 18 
$ 500,000 t 500,000 18 
$ 139.000 s 139,000 ? 

$ 108,294 $ 108 294 ? 
$ l l9 ,173 $ $ 119.173 18 
$ 142,626 $ $ 142 626 18 
$ 120.164 s 120_164 18 
s 213.841 $ 213 841 17 

39,000 39.000 22 
18 Yes? 

Is 294.558 1 s Is 294,558 1 18 

Is 1oo.ooo 1 Is too.ooo 1 17 

$ 194,873 $ 194,873 18 
$ 814,859 $ $ 814.859 18 
s 653,4.26 $ 653,426 16 
$ 451.590 s 45.1.590 22 
$ 119.362 s 119,362 19 
$ 151.319 s 151.319 20 

$ 59,127 $ 59,127 18 
$ 50,000 s 50,000 19 
$ 159.325 $ 159,325 18 
$ 196,024 $ 196.024 18 
$ 5 510 $ 5.510 18 
$ 531 ,338 $ 531 ,338 21 
$ 72,668 $ 72,668 19 
$ 21,600 $ 21,600 20 

$ 1.283,656 $ 1,283 ,656 18 
$ 59,127 $ 59.127 18 
s 117.243 $ 117,243 18 
$ 29.000 $ $ 29.000 18 

s 324.502 $ 324,502 18 
s 40,000 $ 40.000 18 
s 2 907 320 $ 2,907.320 19 
s 750,912 $ 750.912 21 
s 76,701 s 76.701 19 
$ 1,226.063 $ 1..226,063 18 
$ 109,650 s 109,650 21 
$ 27,640 $ 27,640 22 

Is 1·1o,ooo 1 Is 14o.ooo 1 19 

13,714,219 13,714,219 

Packet Page 31



CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2017, 6:00P.M. 

UNALASKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER: Acting Chair Gehring called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 

ROLL CALL 
Commissioners Physically Present 
Vicki Williams 
Billie Jo Gehring 
Travis Swangel 

Staff Present 
Bil Homka, Planning Director 
Thomas Roufos, Associate Planner 

REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA: None 

APPEARANCE REQUESTS: None 

Commissioners Absent 
Helen Brown 
Lottie Roll 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Homka reminded everyone that the Bus study will begin on January 13th and go until the 
19th. 

MINUTES: Acting Chair Gehring asked for a motion to approve the Minutes from October 19, 2017. Commissioner 
Swangel motioned and Commissioner Williams seconded. Motion passed 3:0. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. RESOLUTION 2017-11: APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON 

TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there was any public comment or discussion. 

Mr. Frank Kelty stood to speak in favor of this Resolution. 

Mr. Dickerson asked if everyone received the handouts that he submitted and spoke on his behalf. 

Ms. Sandra Moller on behalf of the Ounalashka Corporation stated that they are opposing the location, not the 
business. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there was any more discussion. 

Hearing none, this public hearing item was closed. 

2. RESOLUTION 2017-12: APPROVING A VARIANCE OF SIX FEET FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON 
TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Dickerson explained why they are asking for a variance 

Packet Page 32



Mr. Robert Lund discussed the drainage easement that is on Mr. Dickerson's property. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there was any other discussion. 

Hearing no discussion, this public hearing item was closed 

3. RESOLUTION 2017-13: APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR SIX RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 3, 
BLOCK 2, ILULAQSUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 176/178/180 CHERNOFSKI DRIVE 

Ms. Tina Tran spoke to represent her Father, Thuyen Dihn. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there was any more discussion . 

Hearing no discussion, Acting Chair Gehring closed this item. 

OLD BUSINESS 
No Items 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. RESOLUTION 2017-11: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN OCTOPUS 

PROCESSING FACILITY ON TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE RESOLUTION 
2017-11: A RESOLUTION 

Mr. Homka spoke to clarify some of the issues that were raised as the Staff was not focused on them. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked for a motion. Commissioner Swangel motioned to accept Resolution 2017-11, 
Commissioner Williams seconded. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked for a staff report. Mr. Roufos gave a staff report. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there was any Commissioner discussion . 

Acting Chair Gehring asked what the difference was between Industrial and Commercial. 

Mr. Homka pointed to the Unalaska City Code of Ordinances to answer Acting Chair Gehring' s question. 

Commissioner Swangel asked at what point do you state something like this operation is industrial. He explained 
his concern about the potential increase or change in species. Commissioner Swangel asked Mr. Dickerson what 
the smell would be like. 

Mr. Dickerson addressed Mr. Roufos on his staff report, agreed with Commissioner Gehring' s statement. 

Commissioner Swangel asked for confirmation on how they would be freezing the by-catch . 

Mr. Dickerson explained and stated that he would be willing to provide a decibel test and he would be willing to 
sign an agreement stating that the building would not get bigger and it would be up for review every year. 

Commissioner Swangel asked if there would be additional sounds with this building such as more back up signals 
for forklifts and things of that nature. 

Mr. Dickerson described the equipment that they have on hand currently and that they will keep an electric forklift 
inside of the building. 

Commissioner Swangel asked what the hours of operation would be. 

2 

Packet Page 33



Mr. Dickerson stated that they would operate from 6 AM to 10 PM. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if there would be more traffic because of buying product directly. 

Mr. Dickerson said no people cannot buy from them directly. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked where the problem with traffic is. 

Mr. Dickerson explained his view on the traffic situation. 

Commissioner Swangel asked for clarification on the process. 

Mr. Dickerson described the process. He also stated there wouldn't be any additional traffic. 

Acting Chair Gehring asked if they looked at any other properties. 

Mr. Dickerson said he did not look at other properties. 

Mr. Homka asked if there will be any inedible solid waste, aside from whatever goes down the sanitary sewer. 

Mr. Dickerson explained that all the solid waste will go to Alyeska Seafoods to go into their meal plant. He said t he 
only thing that will go down the drain is rinse-down water. 

Mr. Homka asked if the intensity will increase over time with the machinery they have and are getting. 

Mr. Dickerson answered that he could process up to 10,000 lb. per day with the equipment he has now. 

Commissioner Roll asked if he would be processing fish . 

Mr. Homka helped clarify that he was explaining the cuts in catching opportunities for Cod . 

Mr. Dickerson explained that he would be open to helping individuals out with certain fish. 

Commissioner Swangel said he would be open to working it out with limitations and reviews. 

Mr. Homka explained that this is a Conditional Use Permit and the Commission can add conditions to the permit. 

Commissioner Williams expressed concern about the new housing that Ms. Moiler with OC mentioned. She 
thought the Conditional Use Permit should be reviewed when the housing was completed to see how it affected 
the new tenants. 

Mr. Homka asked Ms. Moiler to point out where OC is looking to add housing. 

Commissioner Swangel asked Mr. Dickerson what his lot size was. 

Mr. Dickerson answered that it is 3.5 acres. 

Commissioner Swangel said that he feels that they need to go to the site and see the site in person. He asked if it 
may be a good idea to postpone taking any action until the Commission goes to take a look. 

3 

Packet Page 34



Commissioner Gehring said she is in full support and it is not industrial, she is also in support of having a review in 
1 year and having a condition on the permit on the level of poundage that they are able to turn over. She said that 
she is okay with going to the site to see it. 

Mr. Homka asked Mr. Charles Cassiola if it would be okay to have as a special meeting or as adding onto a regular 
meeting and if it is legal. 

Mr. Cassiola explained the legality of the situation and that it is a good way as long as there is a public notice and 
documentation. 

Commissioner Williams asked why they don't put the vans behind the building. 

Mr. Dickerson said the vans will be completely gone. 

Commissioner Swangel asked if the fire hydrant will be an issue. 

Mr. Dickerson said that it was not on their property and it will not be an issue. 

Mr. Homka asked Commissioner Williams to elaborate on her questions. 

Commissioner Williams said that she was thinking that maybe they could move the building so they don't need a 
variance. 

Mr. Homka explained. 

Commissioner Swangel asked if the next item would be tabled if the Commission tabled the current item. 

Mr. Homka said he would strongly suggest that but to get all testimony first. 

Mrs. Dickerson explained the lot situation . 

Acting Chair Gehring asked for additional comments. Hearing none, motion to approve RESOLUTION 2017-13 was 
denied. 

Commissioner Swangel made a motion to table RESOLUTION 2017-11 and RESOLUTION 2017-12 until the January 
18, 2018 meeting to allow for a site visitation on January 15, 2018. Commissioner Williams seconded. The motion 
passed. :. 

2. RESOLUTION 2017-12: APPROVING A VARIANCE OF 6 FEET FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON TRACT 
A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

Acting Chair Gehring asked for a staff report. Mr. Roufos gave a staff report. 

3. RESOLUTION 2017-13: APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR SIX RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 3, 
BLOCK 2, ILULAQ SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 176/178/180 CHERNOFSKI DRIVE 

Commissioner Swangel motioned to approve RESOLUTION 2017-13, Commissioner Williams seconded. 

Acting Chair Gehring stated her desire to make a site visit before approving this resolution. She then stepped 
down due to conflict of interest. 

Commissioner Swangel asked for a staff report. Mr. Homka gave a staff report. 

Commissioner Swangel stated he did not think a 6-plex was needed in the Standard Oil Hill neighborhood. 

4 

Packet Page 35



Ms. Tran stated they were not asking for a 6-plex, only three units with 4 additional bedrooms and two bathrooms 
below. 

Commissioner Swangel asked which units the additional bedrooms would be attached to. 

Ms. Tran stated that they were not attached to any of the units. 

Commissioner Williams stated her concern about having additional bedrooms in space that was originally 
approved for garages. 

Mr. Homka stated the additional bedrooms could result in high-density conditions. 

Commissioner Swangel asked for clarification that the conditional use permit application was for a 6-plex. 

Mr. Homka confirmed that the application was for a 6-plex. Mr. Roufos explained the process by which that 
determination was made. He then read conditions from their original permit 2016-4. 

Voting was called for. The motion failed . 

WORKSESSION 
1. Discussion: Mr. Dale Miller and Street Improvements 
Mr. Homka gave the background on Mr. Miller's request for help. After discussion Mr. Miller was encouraged to 
apply for a variance for his planned addition. 

2. Discussion: Comprehensive Plan 2030 
Mr. Homka gave an update for the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Identify Issues that Commissioners Feel Need Addressed 
Commissioner Swangel questioned Bil on his meetings around town mentioned in the update. Bil clarified his 
intent. 

Act ing Chair Gehring asked for motion to adjourn. Commissioner Williams so motioned, Commissioner Swangel 
seconded . 

ADJOURNMENT: Acting Chair Gehring adjourned the meeting at 8:05 pm. 

~--y THIS 15th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018 BY THE CTY OF UNALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 

Date 
Acting Commission Chair 

Bil Homka, AICP Date 
Secretary of the Commission 

Prepared by Morgyn McConnell, Administrative Assistant 

5 

Packet Page 36



CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 18,2018, 

6:00P.M. 
UNALASKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER: Acting Chair Gehring called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Physically Present 
Billie Jo Gehring 
Travis Swangel 

Staff Present 
Bil Homka, Planning Director 
Thomas Roufos, Associate Planner 

REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA: None 

APPEARANCE REQUESTS: None 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

MINUTES: None 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Commissioners Telephonic 
Helen Brown 

Commissioners Absent 
Lottie Roll 
Vicki Williams 

1. RESOLUTION 2017-11: APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON 
TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

2. RESOLUTION 2017-12: APPROVING A VARIANCE OF SIX FEET FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON 
TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

Mr. Dickerson stated his intention to move the refrigeration unit inside the proposed building. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. RESOLUTION 2017-11: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN OCTOPUS 
PROCESSING FACILITY ON TRACT A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE RESOLUTION 
2017-11: A RESOLUTION 

Commissioner Swangel made a motion approving RESOLUTION 2017-11. Acting Chair Gehring seconded . 

Commissioner Swangel expressed his apprehension about the housing included in the building. 

Mr. Homka recommended amending the resolution to add the condition of annual review for noise, traffic, and 
waste disposal, and/or nuisance calls. 

Commissioner Swangel made a motion to accept the revisions to RESOLUTION 2017-11. Chair Gehring seconded. 
Motion passed. 

Packet Page 37



2. RESOLUTION 2017-12: APPROVING A VARIANCE OF 6 FEET FOR AN OCTOPUS PROCESSING FACILITY ON TRACT 
A, USS 5185, Plat 89-22, LOCATED AT 1757 BROADWAY AVE 

Commissioner Swangel made a motion approving RESOLUTION 2017-12. Chair Gehring Seconded. 

Chair Gehring asked for Staff Report. Mr. Homka asked for clarification whether the building would be built over 
the creek. Mr. Dickerson said no. 

Commissioner Swangel stated that after the field trip to see the actual site, he thought the lot was large enough to 
build without a variance. 

Mr. Dickerson pointed out that it was only a small corner ofthe building in the set back. He asked for reasons why 
the setbacks were necessary. 

Commissioner Swangel stated the need for additional parking may be one reason. 

Mr. Homka explained that it was to maintain a sense of order along corridors. 

Mr. Dickerson said the cost of cutting the hillside back and the maintenance involved in that would add significant 
cost to the construction of the building. 

Chair Gehring agreed with Commissioner Travis in that there seemed to be enough room on the existing lot to 
build without the need of a variance. 

Commissioner Swangel expressed his excitement about the project. He supported the project, but not the 
variance. 

Mr. Homka asked if Mr. Dickerson had a final site plan after deciding to move the refrigeration unit inside the 
building. He suggested possibly deferring the decision a month to allow for the changes to be presented to the 
commission. 

Commissioner Swangel stated he still would not support a variance for the building. 

Mr. Roufos asked if Mr. Dickerson had considered changing the direction of the building to allow it to fit on the site 
without a variance. 

Mr. Dickerson stated the whole project had been evolving throughout the process. He was happy with all that had 
been accomplished thus far. He was trying to get the project done in the least costly manner. 

Vote was called for. Resolution was denied. 

NEW BUSINESS 
None 

WORKSESSION 

Mr. Homka stated that Morgyn McConnell had resigned her position in the Planning department and Judy Huling 
would be taking that position as of February 1't. 

Mr. Roufos reminded everyone to fill out their Statement of Personal Financial Disclosure and return them to 
Clerks. 

Mr. Homka noted that Commissioner Roll and Commissioner William's terms would be expiring in February. 

2 

Packet Page 38



Commissioner Brown motioned to adjourn, Chair Gehring seconded. Motion passed. 

ADJOURNMENT: Acting Chair Gehring adjourned the meeting at 6:50: pm. 

THIS 151
h DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018 BY THE CTY OF UNALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 

ri Date 
Acting Commission Chair 

2-lt;-, ~ 

Bil Homka, AICP Date 

Secretary of the Commission 

Prepared by Judy Huling, Administrative Assistant 

3 

Packet Page 39



CITY OF UNALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

2017 ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report is designed to serve multiple functions: to summarize the planning activities 
of the Unalaska Planning Commission; to serve as a resource document; to project future 
planning needs and activities; and to meet the requirements of§ 2.60.090, Unalaska Code of 
Ordinances. 

The Planning Commission, Platting Board, Department of Planning, and Unalaska City Council 
refer to the adopted Comprehensive Plan, Platting and Subdivision Regulations, Zoning Code 
of Ordinances, Zoning Map, and other applicable codes for all decisions rendered. 

The following residents of Unalaska served on the City of Unalaska's Planning Commission 
and Platting Board throughout 2017: 

Chair Jessica Earnshaw (Resigned after meeting of August 17, 2017) 
Chair Billie Jo Gehring (Elected at meeting of August 17, 2017) 

Vice Chair Travis Swangel 
Vicki Williams 

Lottie Roll 
Helen Brown (Appointed August 18, 2017) 

The Planning Commission and Platting Board are supported by the City of Unalaska's 
Planning Department, which consists of: 

William Homka, AICP, Planning Director 
Thomas Roufos, Associate Planner 

James Price, GIS Administrator 
Judy Huling, Administrative Assistant 

Packet Page 40



PLANNING COMMISSION AND PLATTING BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2018-01 

In accordance with § 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances, the City of Unalaska's 
Planning Commission officially adopts the following annual report, filing the same with the 
Unalaska City Council. 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

BY: ~ 
Billi ehnng 

r ommission Chair 

·~~ 
tNiliiafTlHOm ka 
Secretary of the Commission 

DATE OF ADOPTION: fi:Pr«aru /5: 2ol? J ; C 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 2 of9 
Packet Page 41



INTRODUCTION 

Alaska State law gives incorporated municipalities the authority and responsibility for planning, 
platting, and land use regulation. In addition to providing for the orderly and efficient use of 
land and other resources, planning can establish ground rules for development for the whole 
community and provide the means by which residents participate in important decisions about 
their community's future. With effective planning, a community can define its character and 
realize tangible benefits. 

Comprehensive Plan Public Meeting 

The Unalaska Code of Ordinances establishes the Planning Commission and Platting Board to 
help assure orderly growth of Unalaska and offers additional guidance regarding their 
functions, power and duties, which include: 

• To recognize and utilize such basic information necessary to understand past trends, 
present conditions, and forces affecting community growth and development; 

• To prepare and keep current a Comprehensive Plan for meeting present requirements and 
future needs for community growth and development as may be foreseen by the 
Commission/Board; 

• To establish principles and policies for guiding actions affecting growth in the city; 
• To prepare and to recommend to the City Council ordinances, regulations, or other 

proposals promoting orderly development indicated as desirable by the Comprehensive 
Plan; 

• To exercise jurisdiction over platting as provided in Chapter 8.08, and to act upon requests 
for variances, conditional uses, and zone amendments as provided in Chapter 8.12; 

• To keep the City Council and general public informed and advised as to matters before the 
Commission/Board; 

• To conduct such meetings, as required, to gather information necessary for the drafting, 
establishment, and maintenance of the Comprehensive Plan and the ordinances and 
regulations relating to it; and 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 3 of9 

Packet Page 42



• To perform other duties lawfully assigned to the Commission/Board or which have a 
bearing on the preparation or accomplishment of the Comprehensive Plan. 

§ 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances requires each board and committee to submit 
an annual report which summarizes the activities which have occurred during the previous 
year. The Annual Report is a mechanism for monitoring those activities and for presenting to 
the City Council the goals and objectives for Planning in the coming year. 

SUMMARY OF PLANNING ACTIONS FOR 2016 

I. General Statistics (January 1, 2017- December 31, 2017) 
2017 was less busy than previous years for both the Planning Commission and Platting Board. The 
PC/PB actions for 2017 and previous years are summarized below: 

Considered or Reviewed/ 

Application Type Granted, Approved or Formally Recommended 

2015 2016 2017 

Variance 717 3/3 3/2 

Conditional Use 4/4 717 
Zone Amendment - 1/1 -

Property Acquisitions - - -

Code Revisions 3/3 3/3 -
Plats 6/6 3/3 3 

Planning Documents 3/1 2/1 2 

TOTAL MEETINGS 12 11 8 

II. Planning Commission Recommendations to Council 

The Planning Commission recommended no Code Revisions and no Planning Documents to the City 
Council for action in 2017. 

Ill. Planning Commission Actions and Activities 

The Planning Commission & Platting Board reviewed two Planning Documents, approved three 
Variances, and approved four Conditional Use Permits in 2017. 
January 19, 2017: The Planning Commission through Resolution 2017-01 
Approved Annual Report (Planning approved the Planning Commission and Platting Board 2016 
Document) and filed with City Annual Report, which reviewed the year in Planning in 
Council Unalaska. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 4 of9 

Packet Page 43



January 19, 2017: The Planning Commission, through Resolution 2017-02 
approved Four One Bedroom Residential Units on Lot 10, Approval of a Conditional Use 
Cape Cheerful Subdivision, Located at 2639 Airport Beach Permit 
Road 
The Planning Commission through Resolution 2017-03 

February 16, 2017: Approval of approving a Variance for a reduction of lot width requirement 
Variance from 60 feet to 30 feet to accommodate a subdivision of Lot 2, 

Warren-Machalek Subdivision, Plat 2010-17, at 72 Steward Rd 
The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2017-05 

March 16, 2017: approving a conditional use permit for a cellular tower on a 
Approval of a Conditional Use portion of A TS 1273, located approximately at 2530 Captains 
Permit Bay Road, across from the fuel tanks. 

The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2017-06 
March 16, 2017: approving a conditional use permit for a cellular tower on a 
Approval of a Conditional Use portion of Lot 7 Shaishnikoff Subdivision C, located at 376 
Permit Steward Road . This was appealed to Council, appeal was 

granted on April 11. 2017 

April 27, 2017: The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2017-07 
Approval of a Conditional Use Approving a conditional use permit for a Bed and Breakfast on 
Permit Lot 4, Block 5 of USS 1992, located at 208 Bay View Avenue 

The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2017-08 
October 19, 2017: approving a variance of four feet on the rear setback of Lot 7, 
Approval of Variance of Shaishnikoff Subdivision "C", located at 376 Steward Road 

for an addition to an existing structure. 
The Planning Commission denied Resolution 2017-09 

October 19, 2017 Approving a variance of 19 feet on the front setback of Lot 2, of 
Denial of Variance Creekside Estates located at 1937 Broadway Avenue for a 

shed 

IV. Platting Board Actions 

The Platting Board took action on one subdivision plat in 2017. Planning Department recorded a 
second lat with the state recorder's office that was awaitin final si natures from arties. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 5 of9 

Packet Page 44



On February 16, 2017, the Platting 
Board approved the Preliminary Plat 
of DeCuir Subdivision, A replat of Lot 
2, Warren-Machalek Subdivision, 
Plat 2010-17, Aleutian Islands 
Recording District (06-05-330) 
through Resolution 2017-04. 

The final plat has been recorded with 
the Aleutian Islands Recording 
District as Plat 2017-05. 

In June of 2017, the Planning 
Department recorded Plat 2017-06, 
Margaret Bay Subdivision Addition 
No. 4, with the Aleutian Islands 
Recording District. 

V. Platting Authority Actions 

. :..o;:?t:=.::.=-::::-
• ~~~=..·:.::.::::_-.....-:. 

· :=~-­
·==-~-:;..-=::=­
· =-c---=~....::::.= 

·~~~~~~ 
·~~?.:"?~::=_:::-:,:;~ 
• :::::-:~-::---.-~--• =-..:: =:.::~=;-------

~~~~f 

(.f,§ 
----

: ~~::::.::-== 
~ =:,;:~:::=~:= ..... 

!..-. _ _ 

_ :-:1-q,. 

,.· .. -

I 

L 

1 
'*-·-

~ - ---

;,.~.~.o; · ----

\ ~ . .)'"; ," 

' ;, 
'"" ~ y 

/ 
/ 

; 
/ 

/ 

. "' 
~ ,"­

,_Y 
:.;;;... 

r; •' r--,,-,,.,,-, ..,-h-HO••-•• --j 

'~:"/=..-=-·~ · .. -

I The Planning Director acting as the Platting Authority and took action on one subdivision plat in 2017. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 6 of9 

Packet Page 45



On November 23, 2017, the Platting 
Authority approved preliminary plat of 
Blueberry Hill Subdivision Satellite 
Dish Addition, a re-subdivision of 
Tract B-1, Hillside Subdivision, P-
2013-8, Aleutian Islands Recording 
District thru Resolution 2017-10. 

The final plat is expected to be 
recorded by the end of January 2018 

VI. Planning Determinations 

-·~1::.;:..-··::F~ .. -:--
' i:f- ~=~~ 

·='::::::,.··- --­
==--=----~ 

-~-~-~:xt -
-~-

-- ., ... "''~ ·----- .., 
~- - -

The Planning Director issued one planning determinations in 2017. 

~1~~~;~a 
~..,.:.:::;eM-~ ---

U.i!Illl:Alioi.JIO!< •. O.J(OI!J:' 

~­
~~.:.~.;.-::."'::.':M-~:: .. · .:; 
--:;;;..1~-~~r.:::::.-

~-~ =--

~::;:;-~~­
II!.Z:~ I 

.:Ua::Jo~: 

~-·-)··- ,. 

;.~ "t!~r~. Kt •• "~'="~~:-
~d ~~~=::'"-

~..:t-'Z' 

October 12, 2017: Planning Reducing the minimum front yard requirement from 15 feet to 
Determination granting a variance of 
10% or less. 

13.5 feet at 12 Thompson Circle. (HESTER SUBDIVISION) 

VII. Summary of Appeals Cases and Actions: 

The Planning Commission did not hear any appeals of administrative decisions. 

VIII. Department of Planning Activities: 

The Department of Planning's primary 
responsibility is coordinating community planning 
and development, land use, and capital growth 
within the City of Unalaska. Services include 
assisting the public, Mayor and City Council, 
Planning Commission, and other City 
departments by providing information, guidance, 
and direction on land use issues and regulations. 
Under the guidance of the department, the City's 
annual five-year capital improvement, 
replacement, and maintenance program is 
developed. The department also initiates and 
directs studies and reports relating to long and 
short-term planning needed for both' community 
growth and development, in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report 

Preparing Fireworks for New Year's Eve 

Page 7 of9 

Packet Page 46



In addition to the involvement in the items described in previous sections, Departmental activities and 
accomplishments for 2017 include the following: 

• Negotiated Agreements: Coordinated the negotiation and approval of: 
1. Tideland leases and easements which will allow for businesses to expand operations in 

our community and help to diversify Unalaska's economic base, as well as provide 
access for public works projects. 

2. Negotiated the lease of city owned real estate for the location of a cellular tower on E. 
Broadway across from the Department of Public Works. 

• GIS Improvements. Maintained contract with GTG and won a Special Achievement in GIS award 
from ESRI for last year's effort to migrate to a Local Government Information Model database. 

• Housing Conditions Survey. Planning staff completed 95% of the field work for the Housing 
Conditions Survey between July and October 2017. This document will be completed in the 2018. 

• Planning Education and Outreach. The planning department participated in the annual job fair at 
the Unalaska High School, and hosted 2 first grade classes during their field trip to City Hall. 

• Planning Commissioner Training. Planning staff arranged for Commissioner Swangel to 
participate in Commissioner Training at the 2017 Alaska Planning Conference held in Anchorage in 
November, 2017. 

• Aerial Photography: Established a new contract for obtaining aerial, orthographic imagery to 
update the city's 2010 aerial photography. New images to be comprised of two sources: images 
acquired from drone photography services provided by Aleutian Aerial of the city's built 
environment, and satellite imagery of a vast area surrounding the built environment. The project is 
the combined effort of a partnership between the City of Unalaska and the Ounalashka Corporation 
(OC). The Corporation is contracting for the satellite imagery. Together the two organizations will 
share data per an earlier data sharing agreement. 

• Transportation Study: The planning department initiated a transportation study of all the islands 
transportation resources, including the study 
of possible public transit. In addition to 
collecting data about registered vehicles, 
licensed drivers, analyzing use patterns and 
possibilities, the staff set up cameras in 
partnership with several businesses. The 
cameras served to provide visual resources 
for reviewing traffic patterns, turning 
movements, etc. as well as to aid with 
counts of various types at eight locations. 
The staff also coordinated the operation of 
one study period whereby the city provided 
free bus service throughout an established 
route during a week in August. There were 
266 riders who also completed surveys 
about transportation needs. Another week 
of transit operation is scheduled for a week Transit Study- Bus Passengers 

in January, 2018. 
• Comprehensive Planning. The planning department has begun the process of collecting data 

toward updating the Comprehensive Plan. The data collected thus far pertains to basic 
demographic and economic data, as well as housing data. Two committees were established to aid 
with the process and activities, including a Steering and a Technical Advisory Committee. A public 
meeting was held in October. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 8 of9 

Packet Page 47



• Fireworks Coordinator: Director Homka assumed the role of coordinator in partnership with Dan 
Winters, Public Utilities Director. Dan has 
served in this capacity for over 1 0 years and 
mentored Bil in the role of coordinating the 
city's New Year's Eve fireworks display. The 
fireworks occur twice each year, on New 
Year's Eve and on Independence Day. 

IX. Departmental goals for 2018 include the 
following: 

• Continue to explore options for zoning code 
changes to better implement our 2020 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan. 

• Continue improving process of zoning and 
public nuisance code enforcement as minor 
offenses. 

• Finalize the update to the GIS aerial Housing Conditions Survey 
photography layer, create web maps, set up collector app, and train staff in new programs. 

• Update the Comprehensive Plan as the current plan is nearing the end of its lifespan and a new 
plan is required in order to provide guidance for community facility and infrastructure investments. 

• Conclude the Transportation Study 
• Conclude the Housing Conditions Study 
• Analyze ways to improve inter-city permitting and review coordination 
• Evaluate software to aid with the CMMP process; currently use Microsoft Excel. 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2017 Annual Report Page 9 of9 

Packet Page 48



Packet Page 49



 
City of Unalaska Department of Parks, Culture and Recreation  

Advisory Committee Annual Report to Council 
January 01 – December 31, 2017 

  
 
The City of Unalaska Department of Parks, Culture and Recreation (PCR) Advisory Committee Annual 
Report to Council highlights the Committee’s accomplishments during the 2017 calendar year.     
 
PCR ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 Kelly Stiles, Chair 
 Jason Gates  
 Jim Morris  
 Joanne Villamor 
 Elizabeth Wallace 
 Thomas Roufos  
 
The Committee has been active in the playground improvement project and reviewing the programing 
of the Parks Culture and Recreation Department.  (PCR) 
 
This group’s major role was to provide insight and feedback on programming, events, and operations.  
They serve as another set of eyes looking at all of PCR.  The Committee reviewed the department 
seasonal activity guides, annual budget, and fee schedule along with the newly developed Business 
Plans that were created by each division of PCR.   
 
The Business Plan Project was to develop a format for anyone to look at the department in a more in-
depth way without getting lost in spread sheets and schedules. The Business Plans have made it 
possible to look at the goals and outcomes by division.  
 
The Committee was heavily involved in discussions regarding the Sitka Spruce Playground Project. As 
part of the Committe’s input, the project was taken to the public asking for their ideas and a new 
design for the park was developed. Through a combinatin of input from the Committee, community
and staff, the new design added more parking and a better playground placement, movin the 
playground away from the propane tanks of a local business.  During these public discussions, the 
Committee agreedto look at possibly placing artificialclimbing rocks around the grass area giving the 
children a place to run to each item along with playing on traditional playgroun equipment.   

 

 

Packet Page 50



PCR Advisory Committee Annual Report to Council 
2 
 
The Committee offered feedback and suggestions to help improve the Annual Unalaska Martin Luther 
King, Jr. Celebration, Father Daughter Dance, Christmas/Holiday Bazar, Egg Hunt and Halloween 
programs. The Committee also provided input on the PCR’s electronic message board system that now 
keeps an updated programing offering scrolling throughout the day at PCR.   All of the suggestions 
were implemented and the programs ran better this year.  
 
The Committee also recommended suggestions for future PCR offerings such as offering more Youth 
Sports Leagues to include volleyball.  Lastly, the Committee tackled PCR concerns that included new 
pool hours for children and adults.  The Department worked on a background check policy and a 
parent responsibility policy with age limits for the department.  
 
The below spreadsheet outlines the PCR Advisory Committee accomplishments for 2017.   
 

PCR Advisory Committee 2017 
 

Reviewed Action 
Activity Guides - Winter/Spring, Summer, & Fall  
Budget for Fiscal Year 2018 

 Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2018   
Business Plans (Recreation; Library; Aquatics; 
Parks)   

Implemented Ideas & Suggestions Feedback & Suggestions for Improvements to 
Existing Programs 

Clearer rules regarding Teen Room usage Annual Unalaska Martin Luther King, Jr. Celebration 
Implemented shorting the time for the MLK Event Father Daughter Dance 
Implemented new format for Halloween and 
Christmas/Holiday Bazar  Halloween Event 

Swapped out Turkey Trot for Santa Run in  Christmas/Holiday Bazar 
Conjunction with Christmas/Holiday Bazar Polar Bear Run 

Suggestions for Potential Future PCR Offerings  Concerns 
Additional exercise and fitness classes Lack of qualified people to teach the classes 

 

 New Classes 

The Committee determined that a key area of concern was i PCR’s offerings regarding Aquati 
Programing.  As a means of addressing this concern, a restructure of the Recreation Coordinator staff
was executed, resulting in providing a dedicated Coordinator solely to Aquatics programming.  
Coordinator was hired in August, increasing class and events for all age groups, giving the community a 
greater opportunity to learn about and utilize this wonderful facility  

Packet Page 51



PCR Advisory Committee Annual Report to Council 
3 
 
In an effort to address the shortage of fitness instructors available on the island, PCR staff purchased 
the Wellbeats Virtual Fitness System and a 120” digital commercial display wall that brings near life 
sized fitness instructors to patrons.  This system provides regular access to a wide variety of group 
fitness classes and is updated periodically with new content.  Staff has had some difficulty getting th
system up and running due to network connectivity issues but at the time of writing this report, t
system is nearly online and 100% functional. PCR staff will continue to wrk into the next fiscal year to 
purchase all supplies needed for the system so that patrons will have access to new and exciting
classes like Spinning and Bar Strong cardio weight lifting.  

Continuing to address the community’s desire for increased fitnes class offerings, PCR also sent 
Recreation Coordinator, Carlos Tayag to receive training and certification in POUND and ZUMBA fitne
classes.  Carlos will begin teaching these classes in the spring of 2018.   

 

New Approaches 

In an effort to align more with national trends and to fulfill the department’s mission in youth sports of
developing sportsmanship and a love for the games, PCR has moved away from providing participatio
trophies for Youth Sports Leagues.  As a way to recognize all Sports League participants,PCR is now 
hosting a Youth Sports League AwardsCeremony at the end of each youth sport season.  At this 
ceremony each participant is provided with amemento of the league they participated in,and given 
the opportunity to have the memento signed by all of their teammates.  Additionall, awards are given 
to the player on each team who showed the most improvement and the best sportsmanship.  These 
awards are given in an effort to encourage all the participants t continue to gain experience andbuild 
confidence in the league of their choice and value what it means to be a team player.  Coaches are also 
given a card for each child and encouraged to write out some encouraging comments that are given to 
the players; this has enhanced the personal nature of the player coach relationship and will hopefully
have a greater impact on the lives of the players than the traditional participation trophy ever could 

Additionally, this year PCR has shortened all youth leagues to six week seasons. This allowsPCR to 
schedule youth mini leagues that give youth an opportunity to explore more sport options and also
creates a buffer of off time between leagues that provides parents with a break from coming to games
and practices every week nearly all year long.  

 
 
  
  

Packet Page 52



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Mayor Frank Kelty 

  Unalaska City Council 

FROM:   M. Lynn Crane, Chair, Unalaska Public Library Advisory Committee 

DATE:  February 27, 2018 

SUBJECT: Calendar Year 2017 Public Library Advisory Committee Report to the Mayor and Council 

 

I am pleased to submit this Calendar Year report to the Mayor and Council. In 2017, the Unalaska Public 

Library continued to provide valuable services and resources to the community. The following statistics 

provide a snapshot of core library services and usage. 

 2017 Daily Average 2016 % Difference 

Users through the door 50,597 141 43,367 +17% 

Items checked out 74,345 208 64,374 +15% 

Computer & Wireless Sessions 37,987 106 27,947 +36% 

Reference Questions 1,266 4 420 +200% 

Active Registered Users1 4,427 - 4,621 -4% 

 Programs Offered 137 - 126 +9% 

Attendance at Programs 2,088 - 1,985 +5% 

 Meeting Room Reservations 270 - 301 -10% 

Notarized Documents2 197 - - NA 

Passport Applications 149 - 122 +22% 

Passport Photos3 190 - - NA 

1. Patrons who have used their library cards in the last 60 months 

2. Statistics not tracked in 2016 

3. New service as of March 2017 

  

City of Unalaska 

Department of Parks, Culture, & Recreation 

Unalaska Public Library 

P.O. Box 1370 

Unalaska, AK 99685 

Ph: 907.581.5060 F: 907.581.5266 

Packet Page 53



Page 2 of 3 
2017 Library Advisory Committee Report, 02/27/2018 

 

 

Future Improvement and Potential Expansion of the Library Facility 

The Committee thanks the Mayor and Council for beginning the CMMP process in 2012 to eventually 

improve the library facility. The community has expressed a need for improvements in the areas of 

children’s and teen space, meeting and study space, and more room for seating and library materials.  

In 2017, we saw major progress on this project, with its acceptance into a Pre-Development Program, 

funded and administered by the Rasmuson Foundation and Foraker Group. An architect visited the 

island twice in 2017 to gather community and staff input and present draft concepts to the public, staff, 

and City Council. In spring of 2018, the Pre-Development stage will conclude with a final report and 

presentation from the architect and recommendations to City Council. If the project moves forward with 

Council approval, full design and construction will commence in FY19-21. 

 

Committee Work:  In 2017, the Committee met eight times: seven times in regular session and once in 

special session.  

The Committee received information and gave advice to the City Librarian and the Director of Parks, 

Culture, and Recreation on the following discussion topics in 2017: 

 Library Building Improvement Project 

 Library Business Plan 

 Valentine Rose Writing Contest judging 

 Summer Reading Program 

 Spring and Fall/Winter Library Programs 

 OWL Funding 

 Library Business Plan 

 Rotating Art Exhibit 

 

  

Packet Page 54



Page 3 of 3 
2017 Library Advisory Committee Report, 02/27/2018 

 

Library Advisory Committee Members: 
 

 

 Term Expires: 
 

M. Lynn Crane, Chair 02/2021 
Cyri Thompson, Vice Chair 02/2019 
Debbie Hanson-Zueger 02/2020 
Rhonda Anderson 02/2019 
Virginia Hatfield 02/2019 
Cat Hazen 02/2021 
Robert Cummings 02/2021 
 

In summary, members of the Public Library Advisory Committee report that the library has had an 

exceptional year and that the Unalaska community continues to use the library’s resources, services, 

and programs. We look forward to discussing this report and answering any questions that may be 

raised by Council members or City Administration on February 27, 2018. 

 

 

 

Packet Page 55



2017 

 

 

 

74,345 Check-Outs 

3,547 Items Added 

 

 

 

50,597 Visitors 

1,930 Cards Used for Check-Out 

396 New Library Cards 

 

 

 

 

16,331 Computer Sessions 

21,656 Wireless Sessions 

 

 

 

 

137 Programs 

2,088 Program Attendance 

 

 

 

1,266 Reference Questions 

270 Mtg Room Reservations 

197 Documents Notarized 

149 Passport Applications 

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Library Visits

2017 Patron Count 2016 Patron Count

4000
4500
5000
5500
6000
6500
7000
7500

Library Check-Outs

2017 Circulation 2016 Circulation

Packet Page 56



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 1 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

Unalaska Public Library  

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report :: 02.21.18 

 

Project Purpose Recap 

The existing Library is well used by full and part-time residents but is undersized and outdated to meet 

the current needs of the community.  Some particular needs that are not currently met include 

adequate space for children, dedicated space for teens, quiet study/reading spaces, and current 

technology infrastructure. 

Through refinement of the options in the fall of 2017 with various Library and community groups the 

resultant components of the overall project were established: 

1. An addition to the south accommodating new children’s and young adult areas 

2. A smaller addition to the west providing two modest study rooms and one larger study 

room/meeting room. 

3. Replacement of original finishes throughout the public areas of the building. 

 

Packet Page 57



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 2 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

 

Plan and Function 

 

 

 

Packet Page 58



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 3 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

Space List 

 

 

  

# Existing SF
Grow or 

Shrink

Future 

Quantity
Future SF Plan Update Calculations and Notes on Future Space

Adult Collections Area 1,156            1,156            1,161            

Adult Seating, Tables 558               4             440               440               Some existing table space will be replaced by 

study rooms & carrels

Adult Seating, Individual Nooks / Carrels nic 6             360               360               

Adult Seating, Comfortable Chairs nic 12           500               580               

Magazines / New Books 209               209               inc

Adult Computers 274               274               274               

Young Adult (Teen) Collections Area 663               525               525               

YA Seating with YA Transition Books 170               170               

YA Seating 414               600               685               

Young Adult Computer Area inc 150               150               

Children's Collections Area 573               400               420               Easy and Juvenile collections should grow, and 

should be collocated

Children's Seating/ Story Area inc 300               560               30 children

Children's Activity Area nic 400               inc

Children's Computer inc 70                 inc

Children's Staff Desk nic 120               inc

Family Toilet nic 65                 tbd not shown on concept plan; research plumbing 

then locate accordingly

Children's Storage nic 80                 inc

Alaskan Collection 493               200               493               

Study Table inc 1             125               inc table bench for research

Comfortable Chairs nic 2             80                 402               reading/stack area outside Hudson

Multipurpose Room 570               570               570               

Large Study Room  270               multi use small meeting and study room (not 

identified in previous list)

Small Study Rooms nic 2             240               260               2 rooms for 4 to 6 persons; able to support study, 

distance learning, viewing media

Quiet Rooms for 1 to 2 persons nic 2             160               Not Inc rooms  for quiet study, phone calls, testing or 

viewing media - use small study

Business Center nic 1             80                 -                

Friend's Book Sale 125               125               -                

Sub-total Reading Room 5,035            7,399            7,320            

Circulation/Checkout Desk 193               193               193               

Staff Work / Break Area 546               546               546               existing work / break area needs to be renewed 

to improve efficiency

Library Director Office 157               157               157               

Copy 90                 90                 90                 existing copy area is in a traffic way, but is 

conveniently located

Sub-Total 986               986               986               

Arctic Entry 97                 97                 158               a new or extended arctic entry could mitigate 

cold blasts at circulation desk

Lobby, Display 262               262               410               existing area might change if Friends' book sale 

moves elsewhere

Public Restrooms 318               318               318               

Storage Room 282               282               282               

Telecom 79                 79                 79                 

Boiler 193               193               193               

Janitorial 50                 50                 50                 

Sub-Total 1,281            1,281            1,490            

Sub-total Support Areas 2,267            2,267            2,476            

7,302            9,666            9,796            

1,517            21% 2,008            2,035            

8,819            11,674         11,831         does not include fan loft

Component 

Adult Reading Area

Young Adult Reading 

Area

Children's Area

Reading Room:

1

2

3

Total Net Square Footage

Staff Support Areas

Building Support 

Spaces

Total Square Footage Measured, Main Floor

4 Hudson Room

5 Meeting / Study

6 Other

Support Spaces

7

8

Circulation, Exterior Walls

Packet Page 59



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 4 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

Schedule 

Preliminary Design and Construction Schedule for Remainder of Project:   

• Hire Architect for Full Design  Winter 2018    

• Schematic Design (35%) – Cost Estimate  April 2019 

• Design Development (65%) - Cost Estimate  July 2019 

• Construction Documents (100%) Complete   October 2019   

• Award Bid    January 2020 

• Begin Building Construction   May 2020 

• Construction Completion   Spring 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Budget 

A project budget of $4.5 million has been established using historical data, comparison to similar 

facilities, analysis of site development costs, and a conceptual estimate provided by a professional cost 

estimator.  To ensure that the project stays within budget, additional construction cost estimates will be 

prepared at 35% Schematic Design, 65% Design Development, and 100% Construction Document 

phases.  The budget includes the following components: 

• Building and Site Construction  $3,240,000 

• A/E Design & Engineering 355,000 

• Construction Administration 130,000 

• Fixtures, Furnishings, & Equipment  160,000  

• Permits/Utilities/Entitlements/Inspections/Admin 225,000 

• Project Contingency 410,000 

• Total Project Budget  $4,520,000  

Design

Bidding

Construction Complete

2019

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2Q4

2020 2021

Packet Page 60



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 5 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

Project Narrative 

Aspects of Existing Conditions and Proposed Modifications                             

From the reviews of the possible expansion options in Fall 2017, direction was given to expand to the 

south and west.  The primary goals were to accommodate more study rooms, a larger children’s area, 

and a teen area while improving circulation and providing more varied reading spaces for adults.  

This direction was also guided by the overall themes from the Library Board: 

o Make sure the expansion is ‘right-sized’ so it is achievable and sustainable. 

o Focus on improvements that support library programs and patrons. 

o Focus on reconfigurable space and flexibility. Don’t overbuild any over-specialized 

spaces. 

o Think of the library as a multi-generational and multi-cultural gathering space that 

serves a large and diverse population made up of full-time residents and itinerant 

workers. 

Some of the additional details we learned in the site visits and meetings in the Fall of 2017 included: 

• Preference for the Easy, Juvenile and Young Adult collections to be located on a continuum to 

support literacy and reduce stigma. 

• More single, comfortable seating, and more locations for individual or dual study. 

• More computer’s for children’s homework are needed, but not desired within the children’s 

reading area competing for attention with the books and other library activities. 

• Teens need their own spaces to gather and to study. 

• Average size of study group is 2-4. 

• An additional area that could be used as a medium sized meeting room would be well- used. 

• Better spaces to display best sellers, new books, and new young adult books is desired. 

• A new circulation desk with proper book drop and intelligible service areas with ergonomic 

consideration for staff is needed. During later design phases, staff would like to consider a more 

modern circulation desk that is further out into the library, similar to the desk at the Kenai 

Library. 

• Exterior book drop is in poor repair and should be replaced and possibly relocated. 

• Provision for charging of devices is needed. 

• Create a more open feel.  The current space feels dark. 

• The Friends of the Library are an important asset and should be part of the library though they 

may not need an enclosed dedicated space. Consider locating sale books within the library 

proper, similar to the Homer Library. 

Exterior and Structural Considerations 
The existing building was designed in 1996 and constructed in 1999.  The 11” deep typical exterior wall 

depth with fiber cement siding was repainted in 2017. The roof is a standing seam metal panel 

construction. The perimeter concrete foundation bottom of footer is at approx. 42”.  

Packet Page 61



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 6 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

The main addition proposed to south of existing building of 2500 sq ft will accommodate the new 

children’s area and teen areas.  The exterior form will be a roof gable peak matching the height of the 

existing building perpendicular to the existing roof.  Additional support at the peak is likely necessary at 

existing column location and additional support at existing exterior wall is also anticipated for new ridge. 

A 750 sq ft addition to the west end of the building will accommodate a series of study rooms and 

expanded reading areas.  This form is an extension of the north half of the existing roof at the west side 

of the building.  The corner of this expansion is tight to the property line, therefore further discussion 

will be required with the fire marshal regarding fire rating of that portion of wall. 

Roof extensions and new areas will match existing the existing standing seam metal roof type. 

Typically, new windows are proposed as triple pane vinyl windows in similar style to the existing 

building.  The view to the west from the addition was identified in the site visits and meetings with 

stakeholders as particularly valuable in terms of natural beauty and local wildlife.  A set of larger picture 

windows with window seats is proposed for the children’s area looking this direction. 

It is anticipated the new portions of the building will receive the same type of exterior siding as the 

existing building and the entire building will be repainted at completion of project. 

The existing book drop is in poor condition and will be replaced with a new exterior  

book drop and associated interior cart. 

Interior Finishes 
The main reading and stack areas will be updated with new lighting and ceiling finishes to brighten the 

spaces and take better advantage of natural lighting.  The existing bookstacks will be refurbished with 

new end-panels and augmented with new lower shelving units.  The lower bookstack units allow better 

sightlines and supervision to all areas of the library. 

The children’s area will be relocated to the southwest corner of the library in the new addition with 

young adult bookstacks and teen areas nearby. 

An acoustically rated folding wall partition is located between the teen and children’s area for additional 

flexibility for larger programs and future uses.  

The location of the Hudson room will remain intact.  A gas fireplace is included to add to the welcoming 

community gathering area, further enhancing this space as the heart of the library.  

The carpet will be replaced with good commercial quality carpet tile in public areas.  Walk off carpet will 

be provided in the vestibule and lobby. New linoleum or rubber flooring will be replaced in restrooms 

and in select portions of the children’s area. 

The restrooms will receive all new finishes on walls and floors. The toilet fixtures themselves will remain. 

Mechanical and Electrical considerations 
A new heat recovery ventilation unit (HRV) will be added to accommodate the addition area.   

The older of two existing boilers will be replaced with a new high efficiency boiler with capacity to 

support the expanded library. 

Packet Page 62



Foraker Pre-Development and ECI Architects  Unalaska Public Library :: page 7 

Library Expansion - Concept Summary Report 02.21.18 

New electrical outlets including potential for direct USB connection for charging of personal devices will 

be located throughout the new and existing spaces, particularly in reading areas and study rooms. 

The public spaces in the library including reading areas, stacks, children’s’ areas, lobby and restrooms 

will receive new energy efficient LED lighting throughout.  The lighting will include various levels of 

control that may include individualized switching, occupancy sensors, and/or daylight sensors. 

The infrastructure for internet and wireless internet will be upgraded throughout the building. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Packet Page 63



UNALASKA PUBLIC LIBRARY
ADDITION CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT DRAWINGS

February 20, 2018

Packet Page 64



UP

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9

A

B

C

D

E

F

CHILDREN'S
AREA

116

VESTIBULE
102

LOBBY
103

JANITOR
106

WOMEN
105

MEETING ROOM
104

Storage
110

WORKROOM
112

COMPUTERS
114

HUDSON ROOM
120

STACKS/ ADULT
READING AREA

115

YOUNG ADULT
117

BOOK
EXCHANGE

118

MECHANICAL
111

DIRECTOR
OFFICE

113

FRIENDS
OFFICE

100

COMUNICATIONS
109

MEN
107

HALL
108

MAIN ENTRY
101

0

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

3
9
0
9
 A

R
C

TI
C

 B
O

U
L
E
V

A
R

D
, 
S
U

IT
E
 1

0
3

A
N

C
H

O
R

A
G

E
, 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 9

9
5
0
3
  
 9

0
7
.5

6
1
.5

5
4
3

©
2

0
1

7
 E

C
I,

 I
n

c
.

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

:
A

U
T
H

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
.

IS
S
U

E
 D

A
T
E
:

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
:

FULL SIZE PRINTED ON 22 x 34

O
W

N
E
R

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
:

-

A2.1

F
IR

S
T
 F

L
O

O
R

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
U

N
A

L
A

S
K

A
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

K
M

Z
B

A
M

0
1

/
2

4
/
1

8

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Level 1-EXISTING
PLAN 
NORTH

Packet Page 65



UP

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9

A

B

C

D

E

F

0

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

3
9

0
9

 A
R

C
T
IC

 B
O

U
L
E
V

A
R

D
, 
S
U

IT
E
 1

0
3

A
N

C
H

O
R

A
G

E
, 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 9

9
5

0
3

  
 9

0
7

.5
6

1
.5

5
4

3

©
2

0
1

7
 E

C
I,

 I
n

c
.

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

:
A

U
T
H

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
.

IS
S
U

E
 D

A
T
E
:

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
:

FULL SIZE PRINTED ON 22 x 34

O
W

N
E
R

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
:

-

A2.2

F
IR

S
T
 F

L
O

O
R

 D
E
M

O
 P

L
A

N
U

N
A

L
A

S
K

A
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

K
M

Z
B

A
M

0
1

/
2

4
/
1

8

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Level 1 DEMO
PLAN 
NORTH

Packet Page 66



A4.2

3

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

D

E

F

A4.2 2

A4.21

STUDY
123

STUDY
122

LG. STUDY
121

HUDSON ROOM
120

YOUNG ADULT
117

TEEN AREA
119

CHILDREN'S
AREA

116

DIRECTOR
OFFICE

113

WORKROOM
112

COMPUTERS
114

HALL
108

STACKS/ ADULT
READING AREA

115

VESTIBULE
102

LOBBY
103

MEETING ROOM
104

MECHANICAL
111

COMUNICATIONS
109

JANITOR
106

MEN
107

WOMEN
105

WEST 
ADDITION
750 sq. ft.

SOUTH 
ADDITION
2500 sq. ft.

MOVABLE WALL PARTITION

GAS 
FIREPLACE

NEW CARPET 
AND PAINT

NEW CARPET 
AND PAINT

NEW CARPET 
AND PAINT

NEW CARPET 
AND PAINT

RESTROOMS:ALL 
NEW FINISHES, KEEP 
TOILETS/URINALS 
ONLY. WALLS REMAIN 
SAME

RESTROOMS:ALL NEW FINISHES, KEEP 
TOILETS/URINALS ONLY. WALLS REMAIN 
SAME

NEW WALK OFF
NEW ROOM
NEW DOORS

NEW RESILIENT
RECONFIGURED ROOM
NEW DOORS

1/4 RESILIENT, 3/4 CARPET II 

CARPET II

NEW CARPET I, TYPICAL PUBLIC AREAS

NEW CARPET 
AND PAINT

NEW RELITE

EXIST
RELITE

EXIST
RELITE

EXIST
RELITE

NEW PERIMETER SHELVING UNDER WINDOW

PERIMETER SHELVING UNDER WINDOW, TYPICAL PER GRAPHIC

NEW HRV 
FOR 
ADDITION 
SPACES

Storage
110

EXIST 84" STACKS WITH NEW END PANELS

EXIST 84" STACKS WITH NEW END PANELS

EXIST 84" STACKS WITH NEW END PANELS

BUILT IN 
BENCH FOR 
COMPUTERS 
OR READING 
BAR

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 4
2
" 

S
T

A
C

K
S

, 
N

E
W

 E
N

D
P

A
N

E
L
S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 4
2
" 

S
T

A
C

K
S

, 
N

E
W

 E
N

D
P

A
N

E
L
S

N
E

W
 4

2
" 

S
T

A
C

K
S

N
E

W
 4

2
" 

S
T

A
C

K
S

NEW 42" STACKS

NEW 42" STACKS

NEW 42" STACKS

19

19

16

19

27

36 30

16

22

23

21

18 low 49 tall

4
3

' 
- 

8
 2

7
/3

2
"

14' - 10 7/16"
22' - 5 1/2"

G

0
10' - 6" 20' - 0" 20' - 0" 32' - 0" 34' - 8" 21' - 0" 5' - 0"

1
6

' 
- 

0
"

3
1

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
6

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

3
1

' 
- 

6
"

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

3
9

0
9

 A
R

C
T
IC

 B
O

U
L
E
V

A
R

D
, 
S
U

IT
E
 1

0
3

A
N

C
H

O
R

A
G

E
, 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 9

9
5

0
3

  
 9

0
7

.5
6

1
.5

5
4

3

©
2

0
1

7
 E

C
I,

 I
n

c
.

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

:
A

U
T
H

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
.

IS
S
U

E
 D

A
T
E
:

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
:

FULL SIZE PRINTED ON 22 x 34

O
W

N
E
R

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
:

-

A2.3

F
IR

S
T
 F

L
O

O
R

 N
E
W

 P
L
A

N
U

N
A

L
A

S
K

A
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

K
M

Z
B

A
M

0
1

/
2

4
/
1

8

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Level 1 - NEW -annotated
PLAN 
NORTH

Packet Page 67



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

0

3
1

' 
- 

6
"

10' - 6" 72' - 0"

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

3
9

0
9

 A
R

C
T
IC

 B
O

U
L
E
V

A
R

D
, 
S
U

IT
E
 1

0
3

A
N

C
H

O
R

A
G

E
, 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 9

9
5

0
3

  
 9

0
7

.5
6

1
.5

5
4

3

©
2

0
1

7
 E

C
I,

 I
n

c
.

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

:
A

U
T
H

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
.

IS
S
U

E
 D

A
T
E
:

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
:

FULL SIZE PRINTED ON 22 x 34

O
W

N
E
R

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
:

-

A3.1

R
O

O
F
 P

L
A

N
 W

IT
H

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
U

N
A

L
A

S
K

A
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

K
M

Z
B

A
M

0
1

/
2

4
/
1

8

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

ROOF PLAN
PLAN 
NORTH

Packet Page 68



Level 1
0' - 0"

AB

CDEF

Level 2
12' - 0"

ROOF PEAK
21' - 2"

G

Level 1
0' - 0"

A B

C D E F

ROOF PEAK
21' - 2"

19' - 0"

G

Level 1
0' - 0"

1234

56789

Level 2
12' - 0"

ROOF PEAK
21' - 2"

0

Level 1
0' - 0"

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9

Level 2
12' - 0"

ROOF PEAK
21' - 2"

0

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

3
9

0
9

 A
R

C
T
IC

 B
O

U
L
E
V

A
R

D
, 
S
U

IT
E
 1

0
3

A
N

C
H

O
R

A
G

E
, 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 9

9
5

0
3

  
 9

0
7

.5
6

1
.5

5
4

3

©
2

0
1

7
 E

C
I,

 I
n

c
.

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

:
A

U
T
H

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
.

IS
S
U

E
 D

A
T
E
:

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
:

FULL SIZE PRINTED ON 22 x 34

O
W

N
E
R

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 N

O
:

-

A4.2

E
X

T
E
R

IO
R

 E
L
E
V

A
T
IO

N
S

U
N

A
L
A

S
K

A
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

K
M

Z
B

A
M

0
1

/
2

4
/
1

8

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

East Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

West Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"
3

North Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"
4

South Elevation

Packet Page 69



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-20 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL APPOINTING JUDGES AND CLERKS FOR 
THE SPECIAL ELECTION ON MARCH 6, 2018, AND JUDGES TO SERVE ON THE CANVASS 
COMMITTEE 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska City Code § 4.08.020 states that the City Council will appoint judges and 
clerks who will conduct the City of Unalaska special election to be held March 6, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska City Code § 4.08.020 states that the City Council will appoint three judges to 
constitute the canvass committee that will canvass all votes after the election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Unalaska City Council that the following persons are 
appointed judges and clerks for the Unalaska precinct and shall attend at the Unalaska Precinct 
Polling place, namely Unalaska City Hall, at 7:30 a.m. on March 6, 2018, and shall continue until 
polls close at 8:00 p.m.; thereafter, the judges and clerks shall count and check all votes cast 
against the poll listed in the manner required by law: 
 

ELECTION BOARD 
 
Judges    Clerks 
Marjie Veeder, Chair   Harriet Berikoff 
Roxanna Winters   Annamarie Ammons 
Estkarlen Magdaong    

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Unalaska City Council that the following are appointed 
canvass committee judges for the Unalaska precinct and shall meet on March 9, 2018 (the first 
Friday after the March 6, 2018 election) to canvass all votes after the election judges have 
completed their tally of votes: 
 
 CANVASS COMMITTEE JUDGES 

 
Alejandro Tungul 

 Marjie Veeder 
 Estkarlen Magdaong 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on February 27, 
2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Frank Kelty 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 

Packet Page 70



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
THROUGH: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 
FROM:  Marjie Veeder, City Clerk 
DATE:  February 27, 2018 
RE: Resolution 2018-20: A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council Appointing 

Judges and Clerks for the March 6, 2018 Special Election, and Judges to serve 
on the Canvass Committee 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY:  Unalaska City Code (UCO) § 4.08.020 requires Council to appoint three election 
judges and two clerks for the special election to be held on March 6, 2018, and three judges to 
serve on the canvass committee on March 9, 2018.  Code allows the City Clerk to appointment 
up to three additional clerks should they be needed.  Staff requests that Council adopt 
Resolution 2018-20. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  Council approves a similar resolution for each election. 
 
BACKGROUND:  A special election is scheduled to be held on March 6, 2018. 
 
DISCUSSION:  State Statute and Unalaska City Code require Council to appoint election 
judges and clerks who will conduct the regular municipal election. UCO 4.08.020(A) requires 
appointment of three judges and two clerks; and allows for the City Clerk to appointment 
additional clerks should the need arise.   
 
Additionally, Council appoints three judges to constitute the canvass committee that will 
canvass all votes following the election.  Traditionally, one Council member serves on the 
canvass committee and this year Alejandro Tungul has agreed to be a canvass committee 
judge.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Per UCO 4.04.050 Expenses, “Salaries for non-employee 
election judges and clerks shall be $10.00 per hour.”  Salaries for election workers are included 
in the Clerk’s Office FY18 budget. 
 
LEGAL: None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution 2018-20. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:   “I move to adopt Resolution 2018-20.” 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The Manager recommends that Council adopt Resolution 
2018-20.  

Packet Page 71



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
City of Unalaska, Alaska 

 
WHEREAS, every four years, nations from around the globe send their best athletes to compete 
in the Winter Olympic Games; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 2018 PyeongChang Winter Olympics took place from February 9 to 25, 2018; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Republic of Korea hosted an event where countries came together to compete, 
and demonstrated that we can unite to promote athleticism, as well as peace and friendship; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska, Alaska, is proud to support the athletes from the State of 
Alaska, Team USA, and athletes from around the world who have worked diligently in pursuit of 
excellence; and 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens of the City of Unalaska shared in the excitement of the 2018 Winter 
Olympics and are grateful to all the residents of PyeongChang for making the 2018 Winter 
Olympics a time of sportsmanship, athleticism, and unity for the world to enjoy. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Frank Kelty, Mayor of the City of Unalaska, Alaska, do hereby 
recognize the 

2018 Winter Olympics in  
PyeongChang, Republic of Korea 

 
As an event that celebrated the gathering of nations, and congratulate the athletes and volunteers 
who made the 2018 Winter Olympics a success! 
  
Dated:  February 27, 2018 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Frank Kelty, Mayor  

Packet Page 72



CITY OF UNALASKA  
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
DISPOSE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY, SPECIFICALLY A 1992 PIERCE ARROW FIRE ENGINE, 
TO AN ALASKA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OR AGENCY THEREOF 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) § 7.20.010(B) allows for the disposal of City of 
Unalaska surplus property, with a value of less than $25,000, that is no longer needed for municipal 
purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Safety has a 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine that is 
determined to be surplus property and is no longer needed for municipal purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine is a special purpose vehicle, with few other 
applications than as an emergency fire response vehicle; and  
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the value of this fire engine is less than $25,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, UCO § 7.20.010(B) states in part: personal property no longer needed for municipal 
purposes shall be disposed of in one or more of the following manner; (1) by public outcry auction to 
the highest bidder, (2) by public sealed auction to the highest bidder, (3) to the best qualified 
proposal who responds to a request for proposal to acquire property, (4) to an educational, religious, 
charitable, or non-profit association or corporation providing services to Unalaska citizens, (5) to the 
United States, the State of Alaska or an Alaska municipal corporation or any agency or department 
thereof; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Safety shall notify other Alaska communities that the 1992 
Pierce Arrow Fire Engine is being disposed of by the City of Unalaska. Public Safety shall solicit 
letters of interest, asking that any interested parties detail their specific need and their understanding 
that they would pay for all shipping costs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the letters of interest will be reviewed and a scoring matrix will be applied in order to 
select which interested party would receive the fire engine; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selected party be responsible for all shipping costs.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council authorizes the City Manager 
to dispose of city personal property, specifically a surplus 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine, to an 
Alaska municipal corporation or agency thereof. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on February 
13, 2018. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Frank Kelty 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 

Packet Page 73



1 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM:  Jennifer Shockley, Acting Director Department of Public Safety 

THROUGH: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 

DATE:  February 27, 2018 

RE: Resolution 2018-14 – A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council Authorizing the 
City Manager to dispose of personal property, specifically a 1992 Pierce Arrow 
Fire Engine, to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency thereof 

 

 
SUMMARY:  The City recently acquired a new Fire Engine for service in Unalaska and delivery 
is expected within the next month or so. Once the new engine is delivered to Unalaska, 
Resolution 2018-14 will authorize the City to dispose of the engine it is replacing, a 1992 Pierce 
Arrow Fire Engine, to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency, as allowed for in the 
Unalaska Code of Ordinances.  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council addressed Resolution 2018-14 at the February 13, 
2018 Council meeting, and requested additional information regarding the possibility of keeping 
the 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine as reserve apparatus rather than disposing of the surplus 
specialty fire department apparatus as in the past. 

BACKGROUND:  In 2016 the council authorized the disposal of a 1999 surplus ambulance to a 
nearby community. The surplus ambulance was awarded to Chignik after they demonstrated a 
specific need through a letter of interest and the application of a scoring matrix. Chignik was 
responsible for paying the cost of shipping the ambulance to their community. Other specialty 
Fire/EMS apparatus have been similarly disposed of in previous years. 

DISCUSSION: The Department of Public Safety has two stations, the shared Public Safety 
building at 29 Safety Way and the single-use Amaknak Fire Hall. These two buildings have a 
total of seven large bays, six of which are used for Fire/EMS apparatus and the seventh of 
which is dedicated to criminal evidence processing and storage for the Patrol division. The 
Fire/EMS division currently stores all primary apparatus – two ambulances, a ladder truck, two 
pumpers and an equipment truck+trailer – inside these bays. Fire and EMS apparatus are 
designed to be kept indoors and on a constant trickle charge to ensure all equipment is 
maintained in a response-ready state – the motor, component parts, and passenger 
compartments are at room temperature and emergency responses need not be held up by 
lengthy engine warm-ups or defrosting. Indoor storage for the apparatus achieves other 
financial and operational benefits: It vastly reduces wear and tear on the apparatus, reducing 
the amount of time and money spent on maintenance and ensuring that the apparatus is out-of-
service for the least amount of time. 

Keeping the 1992 Pierce Fire Engine as reserve apparatus has merit if the apparatus can be 
kept in a controlled environment, plugged in to electrical power, and stored in such a way that 
personnel can easily check battery levels, exercise valves, and ensure that all onboard 
equipment is operational. However, there is no available indoor, warm storage for apparatus of 

Packet Page 74



2 

this size, at DPS or at any other City facility. Being stored outside means personnel would need 
to keep the engine cleared of snow and ice at all times in order to maintain it in a response-
ready state; even when cleared of snow and ice it would still take 15 – 20 minutes to warm up 
the engine and fill the brake air tanks. Water in the tanks and pumps could freeze in winter, 
rendering the engine useless for a fire response. Mechanical controls and electrical connections 
may seize up and/or deteriorate, and, depending where the engine is parked, ravens, rats and 
eagles may damage equipment intended for life-saving, all of which increases both the 
maintenance and personnel costs involved in keeping the engine in a state of readiness. As an 
example, the ambulance which was donated in 2016 was briefly stored outside, awaiting 
shipment to another community. After only three months of outdoor storage, the brakes had 
locked up from rust and the batteries were drained. The cost of maintaining this apparatus in 
2016-2017 included approximately $4,000 in DPW parts and labor, and approximately $7,000 in 
DPS labor; it can be assumed these costs would increase considerably if the apparatus were 
stored outside.  

The City of Unalaska currently has an ISO rating of Class 04/4X, achieved with an earned credit 
of 63.89. While the addition of a reserve engine would in fact increase the City’s earned credit, it 
would increase by only .5, for a total earned credit of 64.39. Our rating would remain at Class 
04/4X. 

ALTERNATIVES:  Request a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-14; dispose of the surplus 
engine through the auction process; re-purpose the vehicle for other City use; or maintain the 
1992 Pierce Fire Engine in an outdoor location. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None if the engine is disposed of as previously outlined, as the 
cost for shipping would be borne by the community awarded the engine. If the engine is kept as 
a reserve, there will be considerable equipment and personnel costs associated with 
maintaining it in a response-ready condition. 

LEGAL:  None. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Council move quickly to approve the 
disposal of the 1992 Pierce Engine through the process outlined. Shipping a significantly 
deteriorated apparatus to a neighboring community reflects poorly on the City of Unalaska and 
the Department of Public Safety. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  Request a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-14, allowing the City 
Manager to dispose of the 1992 Pierce Engine to an Alaska municipal corporation or agency 
thereof that demonstrates the highest need, which will be established through a letter of interest 
and the application of a scoring matrix. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support adoption of Resolution 2018-14. The City’s previous 
practice to surplus specialty equipment in this manner has been very helpful to other 
communities in our region. 

 

Packet Page 75



3 

Trained Total
Region Storage Maintenance Use Existing Responders Need Points 

Agency Organization Max Pt.2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 1 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 xxxxxxxx

Aleutian Region Storage Maintenance Use 
0-other 0 - Outdoors 0 - No Ability to maintain 0 - less then 5 calls per year 
1-Western AK 1 - Demonstrated ability 1 - less than 20 calls per year 
2-Peninsula & Aleutians 2 - Stored indoors 2 - greater then 20 calls per year 

Existing Need 
0 - less than 10 yrs old 0 - less than 3 trained responders Evaluators discretion to award up to 2 points based on need
1- less than 20 yrs old 1 - 3 or more trained responders and other factors presented in the request letter
2 - greater than 20 yrs old 

1 - Outdoors covered w/ Plug

Trained Responders 

Engine Giveaway Scoring Matrix 

 
 

Packet Page 76



BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

Section 1. Classification: This is a non-code ordinance.
Section 2. Effective Date: This ordinance becomes effective upon adoption.
Section 3. Content: The City of Unalaska FY18 Budget is amended as follows:

A.

B. The following are the changes by account line item:

Amendment #4 to Ordinance #2017-07
Current Requested Revised

I.  OPERATING BUDGETS

A. Proprietary Fund 
Source:

Wastewater Enterprise Fund - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Position 918,418$      392,400$         1,310,818$      

Use:
Wastewater Enterprise Fund - Transfers to Enterprise Capital Projects 415,000        392,400           807,400           

Source:
Solid Waste Fund - Budgeted use of Unrestricted Net Position 706,067        232,000           938,067           

Uses:
Solid Waste Fund - Operating Expenses 678,700        232,000           910,700           

Source:
Solid Waste Fund - Accrued Landfill Closure Costs 5,525,405     346,000           5,179,405        

Uses:
Solid Waste Enterprise Fund - Transfer to Enterprise Capital Projects 1,105,000     346,000           1,451,000        

II.  CAPITAL BUDGETS

B. Public Utilities - Project Budget

Source:
Transfer from Wastewater Fund Operating WW18A 415,000        392,400           807,400           

Uses: -                   
Construction Services WW18A 369,000        392,400           761,400           

Source:
Transfer from Solid Waste Fund Operating SW18B 1,000,000     346,000           1,346,000        

Uses: -                   
Construction Services SW18B 1,000,000     346,000           1,346,000        

CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-03

CREATING BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUDGET, INCREASING THE WASTEWATER FUND -
TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL PROJECTS TO FUND COMPLETION OF THE DELTA WAY SEWER LINE REPAIRS PROJECT;
INCREASING THE SOLID WASTE FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES, TO PAY FOR REMOVAL COSTS OF BAGGED NETS & FISHING
LINE FROM THE LANDFILL; INCREASING THE SOLID WASTE FUND - TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL PROJECTS, TO FUND THE
LANDFILL CELLS 3 & 4 PARTIAL CLOSURE PROJECT; INCREASING PORTS & HARBORS - UMC FENCING PROJECT BASED ON
BIDS RECEIVED AND REDUCING THE PORTS AND HARBORS - UMC EXPANSION PROJECT CONTINGENCY FUNDS.

That the following sums of money are hereby accepted and the following sums of money are hereby authorized for expenditure.

1

Packet Page 77



C. Ports & Harbors - Project Budget

Source:
Transfer from UMC Expansion Project PH17D 10,000,000   110,360           9,889,640        

Uses:
UMC Security Fencing Project PH17B 325,000        110,360           435,360           

________________________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:

________________________________________
CITY CLERK

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on March _____, 2018.

2

Packet Page 78



Fiscal Year Budget Amendment #4
and Schedule of Proposed Accounts

Org Object Project Current Requested Revised

1) General Fund - Operating Budget

2) Wastewater Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:
Enterprise Fund Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Position 52016049 49910 918,418.00    392,400.00  1,310,818.00 

Uses:
Transfer to Prop Cap Project 52029854 59940 415,000.00    392,400.00  807,400.00    

3) Solid Waste Fund - Operating Budget

Sources:
Enterprise Fund Budgeted Use of Unrestricted Net Position 53016549 49910 706,067.00    232,000.00  938,067.00    
Accrued Landfill Closure Costs 5300 23800 5,525,405.00 346,000.00  5,179,405.00 

Uses:
Solid Waste Fund - Solid Waste 53024752 54210 65,000.00      232,000.00  297,000.00    
Solid Waste Fund - Transfer to Capital Projects 53029854 59940 1,105,000.00 346,000.00  1,451,000.00 

4) Wastewater - Capital Project

Sources:
Transfer from Wastewater Operating 52119848 49130 WW18A 415,000.00    392,400.00  807,400.00    

Uses: -                 
Construction Services 52126053 54500 WW18A 369,000.00    392,400.00  761,400.00    

5) Solid Waste - Capital Project  Budget

Sources:
Transfer in from SW Op fund 53119848 49130 SW18B 1,000,000.00 346,000.00  1,346,000.00 

Uses:
Engineering & Architectural 53126553 53240 SW18B 54,000.00      106,179.00  160,179.00    
Construction Services 53126553 54500 SW18B 942,950.00    88,050.00    1,031,000.00 
Contingency 53126553 55912 SW18B -                 151,771.00  151,771.00    

6) Ports & Harbors Project Budget

Sources:
Transfer from UMC Expansion Project 54119848 49130 PH17D 10,000,000    110,360       9,889,640      

  Contingency 54127053 55912 PH17D 2,209,140      110,360       2,098,780      

Uses:
Ports & Harbors Fund - Transfer from Enterprise Fund 54119848 49130 PH17B -                 110,360       110,360         
Construction Services 54127053 54500 PH17B -                 55,360         55,360           
Contingency 54127053 55912 PH17B -                 55,000         55,000           

Packet Page 79



- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Dan Winters, Director of Public Utilities 
Through: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 
Date:  February 27, 2018 
Re: Ordinance 2018-03 – Budget Amendment Request for $392,400 increase 

funding for the Delta Way Sewer Line Repairs Capital Project. 
 
 
SUMMARY: Through this Budget Amendment, Staff Requests $392,400 in construction 
services funding in order to complete the Delta Way Sewer Line Repairs Project. This 
funding will come from the Wastewater Proprietary Fund - Budgeted Use of Unrestricted 
Net Position. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  A Budget Amendment to create this project was 
approved on September 26, 2017, funding the emergency and limited scope of the 
project at $415,000 via Ordinance 2017-13. 

BACKGROUND:  A breached sewer main on Delta Way has caused bunker fuel to 
enter the Wastewater Collection System. The Emergency Repairs Project was funded 
via Budget Amendment, protecting a portion of the sewer line from further infiltration. 
The funding for the remaining repairs, which were deemed non-emergency at the time, 
was to be requested via the FY2019 CMMP process.  However, it appears that the 
collection system piping is marinating in Bunker C fuel and, until this project is 
constructed, the Sewer Lift Station at Delta Way must be extensively cleaned once per 
week to prevent the fuel from reaching the Wastewater Treatment Plant in violation of 
the Plant’s NPDES permit. We have paid over $25,000 to date to Resolve Marine Group 
to conduct the Lift Station cleaning.  

DISCUSSION: Accessing the sewer main for a direct repair is impractical due to the 
bunker fuel contamination and because the line sits below the water table. To avoid 
digging up the main, the Utility intends to issue an Invitation to Bid to slip line the 
affected sewer main lines. Slip lining is a proven long-term repair for sewer mains and is 
often considered equal to or better than the original installation. The limited emergency 
repairs completed by NAC were performed utilizing the slip line method. Through this 
budget amendment, Staff requests funding for construction services in order to slip line 
the existing sewer line from the Old Powerhouse to Lift Station #3. Construction 
Administration and Inspecting will be performed in-house for this project.   
ALTERNATIVES:  This breach is a potentially serious environmental hazard that could 
affect Unalaska Bay, causing damage to marine life and the safety of residents as well 
as subjecting the City to fines from ADEC and/or EPA.  Staff knows of no other viable 
alternative to funding these vital repairs to the collection system. 

Packet Page 80



- 2 - 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The proposed revised budget is set forth below. 
Construction Administration will be performed in-house. Construction cost is based 
upon a quote from Northern Alaska Contractors, LLC which was provided at the time 
the emergency repairs were conducted. 

 

LEGAL:  N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of this Ordinance.   

PROPOSED MOTION: “I move to approve Ordinance 2018-03”.  

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  This budget amendment funds necessary and time 
sensitive sewer repairs. Additional funding will be noted in any future CMMPs with the 
project description and details will be updated accordingly.  

WW18A Transfer from Proprietary Fund (415,000)$   
WW18A Engineering & Architectural 10,000$      (10,000)$                -$          -$                 
WW18A Repair & Maintenance Services 36,000$      (36,000)$                -$          -$                 
WW18A Construction Services 369,000$    (350,000)$              19,000$    392,400$ 430,400$         

415,000$    (396,000)$              19,000$    392,400$ 430,400$         

 Original 
Budget 

 Expensed & 
Encumbured 

 Available 
Budget 

 This 
Request 

 Revised 
Budget Description

5211-9848-49130
5212-6053-53240
5212-6053-54300
5212-6053-54500

Delta Way Emergency 
Sewer Line Repairs

Packet Page 81



- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Dan Winters, Director Department of Public Utilities 
Through: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 
Date:  February 27, 2018 
Re: Ordinance 2018-03 –Budget Amendment to Reimburse the Solid Waste 

Operations Budget for Bagged Net & Line Recycling Expense of $232,000 
 
 
SUMMARY:  This Budget Amendment request will reimburse the Operating Budget of 
the Solid Waste Division of the Department of Public Utilities for their expenditure of 
$232,000 to pay for the Bagged Net & Line Recycling Project. The reimbursement will 
come from the Retained Earnings of the Solid Waste Proprietary Fund. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:   

• Council funded the operating budget for FY18 via Ordinance 2017-07, adopted 
May 24, 2017. 

• Council awarded the Bagged Net & Line Recycling Project contract to RL Moore 
Metal Recycling via Resolution 2017-67, adopted on December 12, 2017. 

BACKGROUND:  Because the Landfill accumulates bagged nets and line at the rate of 
about 250 tons per year, Staff let a Request for Quotes for the removal and off-island 
shipment of these items. Council awarded the work through Resolution 2017-67. The 
$232,000 Purchase Order was funded from the Solid Waste Division’s Operating 
Budget.  

DISCUSSION:  The removal of nets from the Landfill during the week of January 22nd 
was paid for by the Solid Waste operating budget; through this ordinance, Staff requests 
the reimbursement of $232,000 to the Solid Waste operating budget line item 5302-
4752-54210. This budget amendment request is a housekeeping item. 

ALTERNATIVES:  If the funding is not replaced in the Solid Waste Division’s Operating 
budget, a different budget amendment will need to be requested. The Solid Waste 
operating budget cannot withstand an expenditure of this magnitude and continue to 
operate. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  This budget amendment will transfer $232,000 from the 
retained earnings of the Solid Waste Proprietary Fund into the Solid Waste line item of 
the Operating Budget of the Solid Waste Utility.  

 

Packet Page 82



- 2 - 
 

G/L Code Description Original 
Appropriation 

 Current 
Budget  

 This 
Request  

 Revised 
Budget  

5302-4752-54210 Solid Waste $65,000 $(196,049) $232,000 $35,951 
 

LEGAL:  N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2018-03.  

PROPOSED MOTION: “I move to approve Ordinance 2018-03”.  

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: 
The contract for this project has already been signed, as authorized by City Council. 
This budget amendment then serves as a housekeeping item. 
 

 

 

 

Packet Page 83



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Thomas Cohenour, Director of Public Works 
Through: Erin Reinders, Interim City Manager 
Date:  February 27, 2018 
Re: Ordinance 2018-03 – Budget Amendment #04 (Landfill Cells 3 & 4 Partial 

Closure Project) 
 
 
SUMMARY:  This budget amendment, if approved, will move $346,000 from the Solid 
Waste Fund to the Landfill Cells 3&4 Partial Closure Project. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:   

• Council adopted Resolution 2017-24 on April 25, 2017 which approved this 
project in the amount of $1,000,000 via the FY2018 CMMP  

• Council adopted Ordinance 2017-07 on May 24, 2017 which funded the FY18 
Operating and Capital Budget which in turn funded this project via the 
Unrestricted Net Assets of the Solid Waste Proprietary Fund. 

BACKGROUND:  The City’s ongoing Landfill Development Project has, over the past 
decade, caused the construction of 3 new lined cells at the Landfill as well as the 
Leachate Management System and the re-alignment of Summer Bay Road around the 
Landfill. The next step in the Development Plan is the Partial Closure of Cells 3 & 4.  

Staff worked with Bristol Engineering Services Corporation to develop the bid ready 
documents for this project which was advertised for 30 days. Bids were due on 
February 13, 2018 and a single bid, from Northern Alaska Contractors, LLC, the 
company that has constructed most of the Landfill’s cells and moved the Road, was 
received. That bid was slightly over the amount of funding available for the project but 
was $14,350 under the Engineer’s Estimate.  

Engineer’s Estimate .............................. $1,045,350. 
Northern Alaska Contractors bid ........... $1,031,000. 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  A portion of Landfill Cells 3&4 are full and ready for their exterior 
closure cover.  Installing this cover will keep the landfill in compliance by stopping rain 
water from entering the cells.  Water entering the cells and seeping thru the baled 
garbage is called leachate and is collected via a network of pipes at the bottom of the 
cells.  The collected water is then pumped into the large white leachate holding tank at 
the Leachate Facility at the Landfill.  From there, leachate is pumped to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) for treatment before being discharged into the ocean.   

Packet Page 84



Minimizing the amount of leachate is critical, not only for regulatory compliance, but also 
for holding down operational costs at the WWTP and Landfill. Installation of the partial 
cover will, upon completion, reduce present leachate flows by approximately 15% and 
keep it out of the WWTP system.  After this Partial Closure Project is complete, rainfall 
and snowmelt landing on top of the cover will run off like typical storm water into 
drainage ditches. 

ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not Fund:  Council could choose not to not fund this project.  However, there are 
regulatory requirements as well as operational benefits for completing this work. 

2. Rebid:  Council could choose to rebid this work.  However, the single bid 
received was well below the engineer’s estimate so is deemed a fair price for the 
work.  Rebidding this work will likely result in higher priced bid(s). 

3. Postpone:  Council could choose to postpone this work.  However, this work is 
part of a long range plan that has been in place since 2007 and approved by 
regulatory agencies.  Monies are set aside each year from the Solid Waste Fund 
for the specific purpose of partial closure and full closure. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  The proposed revised budget for the project is set forth 
below.  A transfer of $346,000 from the Solid Waste Proprietary Fund’s Unrestricted Net 
Assets into the following line items of the project is requested. 

Engineering and Architectural:   ............................................................... $106,179. 
The engineering firm of record, Bristol Engineering, will provide construction 
engineering and administration.  Regan Engineering will provide construction 
management and inspection. 
 
Construction Services: ............................................................................... $88,050. 
Northern Alaska Contractors bid was $1,031,000 which was over the  
amount allocated to construction. 
 
Contingency ............................................................................................. $151,771. 
To cover unforeseen circumstances throughout the project.   
Funds will only be used for approved changes. 
 

 

Description FY18 Budget
Spent or 

Allocated
 Available 

Budget 
 This Request 

Revised Available 
Budget

Engineering / Arch 54,000.00$         53,610.00$  390.00$           106,179.00$      106,569.00$            
Construction Services 942,950.00$       942,950.00$   88,050.00$         1,031,000.00$        
Telephone / Fax / TV 200.00$               200.00$           200.00$                    
Advertising 450.00$               438.26$        11.74$             11.74$                      
Contingency 151,771.00$      151,771.00$            
Permit Fees 2,400.00$           2,400.00$       2,400.00$                

1,000,000.00$   54,048.26$  945,951.74$   346,000.00$      1,291,951.74$        

MUNIS PROJECT SW18B  -  CELLS 3&4 PARTIAL CLOSURE

Packet Page 85



LEGAL:  N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends fully funding this budget amendment. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move to approve Ordinance 2018-03. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:   

This budget amendment is required to fund a project that is a regulatory requirement.  

Packet Page 86



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Tom Cohenour, Director, Department of Public Works 
Through: Erin Reinders, Acting City Manager 
Date:  February 27, 2018 
Re: Ordinance 2018-03 - Budget Amendment #04 
 UMC Security Fence Project 
 
 
SUMMARY:  This budget amendment request, if approved, will move $110,360 from 
the contingency line item of the UMC Positions 3&4 Replacement Project into the UMC 
Security Fence Project.  Bids were received on February 20, 2018, however, the low bid 
exceeded available funding.  Therefore, additional funding is requested to cover the 
shortfall. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  Council has taken the following action specific to the 
UMC Security Fence project: 

• On December 27, 2016, via Ordinance 2016-18, Council approved the 
reallocation of $325,000 from the Department of Public Safety’s State Homeland 
Security Grant to the UMC Security Fence project account. 

• On December 28, 2017, via Resolution 2017-68, Council authorized the City 
Manager to amend Turnagain Marine’s contract for the UMC Positions 3&4 
Replacement Project to include post holes for the UMC Security Fence Project in 
an amount not to exceed $194,660. 

BACKGROUND:  The lack of security fencing has been identified during annual port 
security drills as an area that was vulnerable and needed upgrading.  The UMC facility 
is used to tie up both foreign and domestic cargo vessels, cruise ships, bulk fuel 
carriers, United States Coast Guard, and State of Alaska enforcement vessels.  
Physical security of the facility is required to create a controlled access point allowing 
law enforcement to better screen personnel for potential terrorists, acts of vandalism, 
and theft.  The scope of this project is to install commercial grade security fencing 
around the UMC facility which constitutes a series of 7 dock positions spanning 2200+ 
feet.   

DPS applied for, and received, a State Homeland Security Grant for $325,000. 

Staff contracted with PND Engineers in the amount of $17,500 to prepare bid ready 
documents for the construction of this project.  Funding came from the UMC Position 
3&4 Replacement project.  The project was advertised for over 30 days and bids were 
due February 20, 2018. We received two bids for the work and Turnagain Marine was 
found to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  

Packet Page 87



 
 

We received a very fair bid from Turnagain Marine as shown by comparing it to the 
Engineer’s Estimate and the other bid received on February 20, 2018: 
 

1. Northern Alaska Contractors .............. $575,060. 
2. Engineer’s Estimate ............................ $533,777. 
3. Turnagain Marine ............................... $367,360. 

 
This request for $110,360 will be allocated to Construction Services and Contingency. 

 

In efforts to budget conservatively but realistically and being mindful of the fact that 
Council has already voiced some concern regarding the cost of this particular project, 
Staff has outlined a budgeted contingency at 15% of the contractors bid amount for 
construction services. Earlier on in the planning stages of projects, using 20% or more 
is common.  Staff is hopeful given the scope and lower level of complexity with this 
project that this lower contingency will be adequate.  It is promising that we are able to 
fund this budget amendment from the remaining contingency line item of the UMC 
Positions 3&4 Replacement Project, a project headed up by the same contractor.   
 
DISCUSSION:  The grant has a deadline of 9-30-18 to expend funds. With the UMC 
Security Fence project being impacted by the UMC Positions 3&4 project, Turnagain 
Marine, as contractor on both projects, will stage construction of both projects in order 
to complete the fence work by the grant deadline.  
 
Turnagain Marine has already been contracted to perform the security fence post hole 
work as a separate contract via Resolution 2017-68.  Therefore, as the single contractor 
on the work site, they will be able to seamlessly coordinate the work. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not Fund:  Council could choose not to fund this request.  However, not funding 
the completion of the security fence leave all 7 dock positions unsecured and 
vulnerable to potential terrorists, acts of vandalism, and theft. 

Description FY18 Budget
Spent or 

Allocated
Available 

Budget
This Request

Revised Available 
Budget

Engineering / Arch 10,000.00$        -$                10,000.00$        -$                    10,000.00$              
Survey Services 1,000.00$          -$                1,000.00$          -$                    1,000.00$                
Const Services 312,000.00$     -$                312,000.00$     55,360.00$        367,360.00$           
Advertising 500.00$              -$                500.00$              -$                    500.00$                    
Contingency -$                    -$                -$                    55,000.00$        55,000.00$              
Interest Expense 1,500.00$          -$                1,500.00$          -$                    1,500.00$                

325,000.00$     -$                325,000.00$     110,360.00$     435,360.00$           

MUNIS PROJECT PH17B  - UMC SECURITY FENCING

Packet Page 88



 
 

2. Rebid:  Council could direct staff to rebid the work.  However, the low bid from 
Turnagain Marine was very fair since they are already on site.  Future bids will 
almost certainly be much higher. 

3. Postpone:  Council could postpone the completion of the security fence.  
However, that course of action will likely lead to forfeiture of the $325,000 grant 
because the work will not be able to be completed by the grant deadline.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  This budget amendment request will move funds from 
the UMC Positions 3&4 Replacement project Contingency line item which is adequately 
funded.   

LEGAL:  N/A 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends fully funding this budget amendment 
request. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move to approve Ordinance 2018-03. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  The budget amendment utilizes unused funds from 
contingency line item of the UMC Positions 3&4 Replacement Project to supplement the 
grant funded UMC Security Fending Project.  The fencing significantly improves security 
at the International Port of Dutch Harbor.  
 
As previously presented to Council, the UMC Security Fending Project is a time 
sensitive project due to the grant agreement. Postponing or rebidding this project is an 
option if council determines that the project is too costly.  However, project costs and 
bids rarely go down as time moves forward.  Additionally, postponing the project would 
result in returning the grant funding, which would likely make it more challenging to be 
awarded these grants in the future. 
 

Packet Page 89



Packet Page 90



Packet Page 91



Packet Page 92



Packet Page 93



Packet Page 94



Packet Page 95



Packet Page 96



Packet Page 97



Packet Page 98



Packet Page 99



Packet Page 100



Packet Page 101



Packet Page 102



Packet Page 103



Packet Page 104



Packet Page 105



Packet Page 106



Packet Page 107



Packet Page 108



Packet Page 109



Packet Page 110



Packet Page 111



Packet Page 112



Packet Page 113



Packet Page 114



Packet Page 115



Packet Page 116



Packet Page 117



Packet Page 118



Packet Page 119



Packet Page 120



Packet Page 121



Packet Page 122



Packet Page 123


	1  Agenda 2.27.18
	2  Draft Meeting Minutes 2.13.18
	3  Mgr Report
	CM Report 02-27-18
	CMMP Process Timeline For Council
	Sheet2


	4  Council Financial Reports - Jan 2018
	5A  Planning Minutes 12-21-2017 Signed Meeting Minutes
	5B  Planning Minutes 01-18-2018 Signed Meeting Minutes
	6  Planning Commission Annual Report
	7  PCR Advisory Committee Annual Report to Council
	8A  Library Advisory Committee CY17 Report
	8B  Annual Report Infographic CY17
	9A  2018-0222 Unalaska Library Concept Summary
	9B  2018-0222 Unalaska Concept Drawings
	Sheets
	T1-01 - TITLE SHEET
	A2.1 - FIRST FLOOR EXISTING PLAN
	A2.2 - FIRST FLOOR DEMO PLAN
	A2.3 - FIRST FLOOR NEW PLAN
	A3.1 - ROOF PLAN WITH ADDITIONS
	A4.2 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	10A  2018-20 Resolution Election Judges and Clerks
	10B  2018-20 Council Memo
	11  Proclamation Winter Olympics
	12A  Resolution 2018-14
	12B  2018-14 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine Memo to Council
	13 Budget Amendment
	Budget Amendment #4 FY18
	Budget Amendment #4 FY18 page 2
	BA Ordinance 2018-03 Delta Way Sewer Line Repairs
	BA Ordinance 2018-03 Nets
	BA Ordinance 2018-03 Landfill Cells 34 Partial Closure
	BA Ordinance 2018-03 UMC Security Fence

	14 Fisheries
	1218_001
	1218_005
	1218_009
	1218_013
	1218_019
	1218_024
	1218_029
	1218_033




